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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
Ta the Suparvisory Beard and Sharehcldars of MF banka a.d., Banja Luka

Ws have audited lhe accompanying financial statemenls (page 2 1o 48) of MF banka a.d., Banja Luka {herelnaftar
lhe "Benk™, which comprize the statemenl of financial position as of Decamber 31, 2013 and the relaled
slederment of profit and loss end olher comprehensive income, statement of changes in equily and statemenl of
cash flows for the year then ended, and 2 summary of slgnificand accounting pollcles and olher explanatory nofes.

Managemeant's Responsibifily for the Financial Stataments

Management |5 respanslble for the preparation and fair presentation of thege finandal statements in acmrdanqa
with the Inlernational Financial Reperting Standards and for such internal control as management delermines s
necezsary to enable the preparation of financial statemenls that ara fres frem material misslatsment, whether due

to fraud or errgr.

Auditors’ Responsibilily

Our responsibilily is 1o express an opinion on these financial statements based on ocur audit. We conducled our
audit in accordance with Internatlonal Stendards on Audiling. Those stendards require that we comply with ethical
requiraments and plan and perform the awvdit to cblain rezsonable assurance whether the financlal statements
are fraa from material misstatlement.

An audit involves parforming procedures to cblain sudit svidence about the amounts and disclosures |n the
financial statemenls. Tha procedures selested depend on the auditor's judgmeant, including the assessment of the
risks of materfal misstatement of the financlal stetements, whelher due lo fraud or error. In making those rigk
asesssmants, the auditor considers internal control relsvant to the Bank's preparation and falr prezentatian of the
financial etatements In order b¢ design audit procedures that are appropriale in the circumstances, but not for the
purpoze of expressing an opinlon on the effecliveness of the Bank's |nternal control. An audit also includes
evalualing the appropriateness of accounting pelicies vsed and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the averall presentalion of lha finanglal stalements.

VWa believe thaf the audil evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
apinion,

Opinion

In cur apinion, the financial statements present faldy, In all materdal respects, the financlal posilion of MF banka
a.d., Banja Luka a= at Gecember 31, 2013, and ifs financial performance and ils cash flowe for the year then

ended In accardance with Intemalional Financial Reporling Standards.

Deloitde deo

Daloitte d.o.o.,
Banja Luka

March 25, 2014
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MF BANKA A.D. BANJA LUKA

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND OQTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year Ended Decembar 31, 2013
[Thousanda of BAM)

Year Ended Year Ended
Decembar  Dacember 31,

Notg 3, 2013 2012
intarest Incama 5 10,507 7.132
Interest expenaes i) 4.178) {1,988
Net interest income G328 5,144
Fes and commlssion income 7 1,360 742
Fee and commission expenses 8 {468} {377)
N&t fes and commisglan income Be 365
Qther eperating income g 35 238
Cither operating expensss 10 {B.544) {5,141}
Foreign exchange losses, net : {17) 9
Provlzions for polential loszes, net 11 {348) 18
Profit from operations befors taxes 324 g16
Income taxas (31) {20)
Meat profit for the yaar 285 595
Other comprehensive Income -
Total comprehenelve income for the year 265 5485
Earnlngs per ahare
- Basic and dilutad earnings per shere (in BAM} 22 1.14 2.28

Noles on the following pagss form an inlegral part
of these financle] statements.

These finencial stalements were adopted by the Bank’s Suparvisary Board on February 28, 2014,

Signad on behalf of MF banka a.d., Bana Luka by:

Ankiga Mimic
Chigf Analyst

W

Sredka Bopunovic
Director

PN

——
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As of Dagember 31, 2013
{Thousands of BAM)

ASBETS

Cash and balances held wih the Central Bank

Deposits hald with olher banks
Loane to customens

Equiptment and inlangible assets
Acaruad Inlerest and other essels

Total asseta

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Bank deposits

Cuztomear daposits

Borrawings

Subordinaled debt

Olher lebilitiss

Provisions for employee retiremsnt benafits
Tolal liablltes

Equity

Share capltal

Accurmulated 05528
Total equily

Total llabilities and equity

Contingent llabllitias and commitmants

MF BANKA A.D. BANJA LUKA

Dacember 31, Decembar 31,

Note 2013 2012
12 34,748 13,774
13 5,150 4,100
14 100,076 82,998
15 1,755 1,553
16 1,000 770
151,729 102 195
17 5,000 5,000
17 77.424 51,020
18 42 590 25,468
19 3,912 .
20 2,020 1,232
11 o1 89
131,046 82 809
21 26,000 26,000
{5,317} (5.814)
20,683 20,386
151,729 103,195
23 9,978 7,517

Notes on the follewing pages form an integral part

of lhesa financlal stalements.
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MF BANKA A.C. BANJA LUKA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Year Ended December 31, 2013
{Thousands of BAM)

Shara  Accumulated

Capital Lozsss Toial
Balancs, January 1, 2012 26,000 {5,200) 19,791
Frofit for the year 595 B8
Balance, December 31, 2012 26,000 (58143 20,380
Other increases (rounding adjustment) - 2 2
Profit for the year - 285 205
Balance, December 31, 2013 26,000 (5,317} 20,683

Notes on the following pages form an integral part
of these Fnancial sfatemants.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Endad December 31, 2042
{Thousands of BAM)

Cash flews from aperating activitles

Interesl receipis

Inferesl paid

Fea and commission receipts

Fze and commission peld

Infiows from the collaction «f recelvables previously wiitien off
Fayments to employees and suppliers

Cparaling profitifoss) bafore changes it operailing asssts and fahifles

Changes [n operating ageata and llabilities -
Met increass In lpans to customears

Net Increasef{deciease) in hank deposils

Met Inerease In customer deposiis

Naf cash genoraled byi{used inJoperating aciivifias

Cagh flows from Invasting activitles
Purchase of intanglble agsels
Purchasza of property and sgquipmeant

Nef cash ysad in nvesting eciivilies

Caah flows from financling activities

Inflows from horrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Receipts and paymenls per extraardinary itemes

Nef cash generated by financing aciivilles

Net Increasel{decrease) In cash and cash equlvalents

Effects of the changes in foralgn exchange rates

Cash and cash equlvalznts, baginning of year

Gash and cash equivalents, end of year

Cash and cash aqulvalanis comprisa the fallewing ling ltems:

- Cash and balences hald wilh ihe Central Bank
- Deposits hald with ather banks

MF BANKA A.D. BANJA LUKA

Yaar Ended Yaar Endad

December 1, Decamber 21,
2013 2012
10,087 7548
(3727) {1,472}
1,81 718
{149) (377)

- 238
(5,002} {4,804)
2110 1,748
(26,724) {47,261}
- fo88)

25 377 20,6581
1,763 (259180
{88} {288}
(522} {712}
{710 {878}

28 400 25497
(7.368) 29)
{58) [258)
20,975 25212
22028 {1.805)
{3) {25}
17,874 19,584
36,590 17.974
34,748 13,774
5,161 4,100
39,8089 17,874

Wotes on the followlng pages fotm an Integral part

of thesa financial statemends,
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MF BANKA A.D. BANJA LUKA

NOTES TO THE FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS
¥oar Ended Dacember 31, 2013
{Al amounts expressed in thousands of BAM, uniess otherwise sfatad.)

21,

2.2

2.3,

BANK'S FCUNDATICH AND BUSINESS POLICY

MF Banka a.d., Banja Luka {hereinafter the “Bank") was sstablished on June 12, 2007 and named IEFK
Banka a.4., Banja Luka,

 the process of the Bank's regislration, afl requirements defined by the regulatory autherilies wilh
respect to the principal banking activitlsz were fuifilled. 'n accordance wilh ls Declslon numbered 03-
231-11/2007 of May 11, 2007, the Republic of Srpska Banking Agency {lhe ‘BARS" or "Agency") issued
an operating license to the Bank, and pursusni to Declston numbered 03-6567-4/2007 of July 12, 2007,
the Agency issued to the Bank a licensse to conduct internalicnal peyment transacliens.

At the Shareholder Assambly mesting held on Aprll &, 2010, the previols owners of lhe Bank enacled a
Decision to sell 100% of the Bank’s aguily {Note 21), whereafter an Agraement on the Purchase and
Sale of Capital was sigred on July 8, 2010 based on which the Bank's mejor shareholder became MKD
Mikrafin d.o.c., Banja Luka, and as of that dale this entity also assumed the management and canlrl
over tha Bank.

Based on the declslon enacted by the new owner of the Bank and the decision of the compelent court in
Banja Luka as of Navember 26, 2010, the Bank changsd ils name Into MF Banka a.d., Banja Luke.

In the Republic of Srpska, the Bank is licensad to perform banking activities thal Include payment
transfers, credit and deposlt operatlons in the country and ahbroad, and as in accordance with Lhe
Repubiic of Srpska banking leglslation, the Bank Is to operate bassd upen the principles of liquidily,
solvency and prafitabilily,

The Bank is headguartered in Banja Luka, at number 22 Vase Pelagiéa Strest. At December 31, 2013,
the Bank had a central office in Banja Luka and branch offices Borik and Centar In Banja Luka and
branch oHlces in Laktadi, Gradika, Derventa, Briko, Bijeljina, Dobej, Prijedor, East Sarajevo, Zvomik,
Movi Grad, Teslid, Projavor and Pale.

A3 of December 31, 2013, the Bank had 138 employeas (December 31, 2012: 111 employess).
BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION COF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
ACCOUNTING CONVENTICN

Statement of Compliance

The accompanying financial statements are lhe annual sland-zlone financial statements of the Bank,
prepared in accordance with International Financlal Repeorting Standards {(IFRS).

Basls of Measuremant and Preparation of the Financlal Statsments

The financial stataments of the Bank have been prepared on tha historical cost ptinciple as furthar
gxplained in the accounting pollcles hereundar,

Functional and Fresentation Currancy

The Bank's financlal statemants are stated In thausands of Convertible Marks (BAM), BAM being the
functlanal and official presantation corrency in the Republic of Srpska and Bosnia and Herzegovina,
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MF BANKA A.D. BANJA LUKA

WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Yoar Ended December 3, 2013
FAKf atourts expressed in thousands of BAM, unleas olfterwise stated.)

2,

2.4,

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
ACCOUNTING CONVENTION [Continuad) -

Application and Impact of the New and Revised International Flnancial Reporiing Standards
(IFRS}

Standards and interpratations Effactive it the Current Perfod

The fallowing amendments to the existing standards |ssued by the International Accounting Standards
Board and interpretations lssued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commiltes
fIFRIC) are effective for the current parlod.

= IFRS 10 “Unconsolidated Financlal Stetaments” {effective for annual periods beginning an or after
January 1, 2013%

= JFRS i1 “Joint Amangements" {effective for annual perlads beginning on or after January 1, 2013);

» IFRS 12 "Disclosures of Involvement with Other Entities” (elfective for annug! pariods beglnning
on or after January 1, 2012},

= [FRS 12 °Fair Valus Measurement’ (effective for annual periods beglnning on or after January 1,
2013);

« |AS 27 {revieed in 20+1) "Separate Financial Stalements" {effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2013}

« 1AS 28 (revised In 2011} "Investments In Azsociates and Joint Venturas® (effecilve for annual perlods
beglnning on or after January 1, 2013);

+  Amsndmenls 1o IFRS 1 “First-ime Adoplion of International Financlal Reporting Standards’ —
Government Loans {effeclive for annual periads beginning on or afler January 1, 2may,

«  Amendments to IFRS 7 *Financial {nstrumsnts; Disclosures™ — Offselting Financlal Asssts and
Finangial LiabllItlas (effective for annual periods beginning on or after Jenuary 1, 2013);

= Amengments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 "Unconsolidaled Financlal Statements, Jolnl
Arrangemenls and Disclosures of lnvolvernent with Olher Entities: Transilion Guidance” {effeclive for
annual periods beginning on or afler January 1, 2013);

= Amendments to JAS 1 “Presentation of Fingncial Statements™ — Prassntation of items of Other
Comprehensive Income (effectlvs for annual perloda beginning en or after July 1, 2012);

= Amendments to IAS 18 "Employes Seneflis’ (effective for annual pericds beginning on or after
January 1, 213},

= Amendments to varlous standards and inlerpratations “Improvemsats io IFRSs {2012)° resuiting
from Ihe armuat impravement project of IFRS published on May 17, 2012 (IFRS 1, 1AS 1, 1AS 16,
IAS 32, |1AS 34), primarily with & view to removing Inconsistencles and clarifying warding {most
amendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or afler 1 .January 2013); and

= |FRIC 20 "Stripping Cosgts In the Produclion Phase of a Surface Mine" {effective for annual peariods

beginning on or after January 1, 2013).

The adoplion of thess amendments to the exlsting standards end interpratalions has not led to
significant changes In lhe Bank's sccounting policles, with the exceptlon of certain additions o
digclosuras as required |n accordance with the new IAS 1.

Standards and fnferpralations In Isaire nof yel in Effect

At{he date of issuance of these financla! stalements the following standards, revisions and
intarprelations were in issue but not yat affective:

= IFRS © ({revigad n 2010)'Financlal Instruments® (effeclive for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013);

« IFR5 14 "Regulatory Dsferral Accounts™ (effeclive for annua! perlads beginning on or after January
1, 2016);

+  Amendments to [FRS 9 “Financial Instrumants” and IFRS 7 "Financial Instrurmenls: Disclosures” —
Mandalory Fffechive Date end Transilion Disclosures (sffactve for annual periods beginning

on or after January 1, 2015);
+  Amendments 1o IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 - Exemption from Congofldatian of Subsidiarles

undsr IFRS 10 'Unconsolidatad Financlal Slatements' {effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2014},
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MF BANKA A.D. BANJA LUKA

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Yeoar Ended Decamber 31, 2013
(A amounts expressad in fhousands of BAM, unfess oifterwise staled.)

2,

2.4

3.

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AGCQUNTING CONVENTION {Continuad)

Application and Impact of the New and Ravised International Financlal Reporting Standards
{IFRS)} {Continued)

Standards and fnterpralations in lssue not yel in Effect (Confinued)

» Amendmenls to iAS 32 "Finencial Instruments: Presentation” — Offselting Financial Assefs and
Financlal Liahiitles faffactiva for annual perlods beglnning on er after January 1, 2014);

= Amendmenis to 1AS 36 “Impairment of Assets" — Disclosure of Recoverabls Amount for Mon-
financlal assets {effective for annual parlads beglnning on or after January 1, 201 4);

» Amendmsnts to IAS 38 *Financial Instruments:” Recognllion and Measwement - Novatlon of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting {effectiva for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2014,

«  Amendments resulling from Annual improvements 2010-2012 Cycle issusd in December 2013
{IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 8, IFRS 13, IAS 18, I1AS 24 and |AS 38) with 8 view lo removing
inconsistencies and clarifying wording {(effectve for annual pericds baginning on or after July 1,
2014}

» Amandmants resuiling from Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle lssued In Decembar 2013
(IFRS 1, IFRS 3, IFRS 13 and IAS 40} with a view lo removing inconsistencles and clarifying
wortling {effective for annua! periods beginning on or afler July 1, 2014); and

» IFRIC 21 "Levies” (effective for annual parlads beglnning on or after January 1, 20143,

The Bank's management has elecled nof 1o adopt these slandards, revisions and inlerpratations In
advance of thelr effective dates. The managemerd anticipates that the adoption of thesa standards,
revisions and intergretations will have no matarial impacl on the financie! stalements of the Bank In he
perlad of inilial applicalion.

SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES

Incoma and Expanae Ragognition

Intarest income and expenses for all interest-bearing financlal instruments, except for financtel Ingtruments
cleasified as available for sale or carrled at fair value through proflt and |oss, are stated at fair value of
assels recelved-or paid, and are presenled as Interest income and gxpenses, and fee and commission
income expenses in the statement of profil and loss and other comprehensive income.

Interest income s deferred and recognized using the effective interest method, which represents the
rate that exactly discounts (reduces) the estimated future cash Inflows over Lhe expected lifa of financlal
instrumenits 1o the ned carrying amount of such assets upen initial recognition.

Loan arigination fees are deferrad and amortized over lhe loan repayment period by applying the
effective interest melhod and are presanied within Interest income.

Intereat Income |3 recognized exclusively based on performing loans and other [nvestments where there
are no problems in colteclion, i.e., based on loans and investments thal do not represent bad {(mpaired}
assets. Caloulations of inferest receivables from non-performing Icans end other invesliments, i.e. loans
and lnvestments that represant bad {(mpalred) assets as there are problems in collection thereof, are
recorded wilhin oft-balenca sheet ilems and recognized as incame only if collectad,

Forelgn Exchange Translation

Transactions denominated in forelgn currenciss are ranslaled Into BAM at the official sxchanga ratez
prevalling at the date of each transacllon. Assets and liabilltles denominated In forelgn currencies are
transhaled Into BAM al the stalement of finenclal position dale by applying the official rates of exchange
in affact on that date. Conlingant liabifities denaminated in foreign currencias are Uranslated into BAM al
ihe officlal exchanga rates prevaillng &t the statemsnt of financlal posillon dats. Forelgn exchange gains
or losses asing upon lranstalion are ¢redited or charged to the glatemant of comprahensive Incoma,
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MF BANKA A.D. BANJA LUKA

HOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2092
(AN amounts axpressed in housands of BAM, unless offterwiss stata}

34

SUMMARY GF SIGHIFICANT ACQUNTING PCLICIES [Continuad)
Equlpment and Infanglble Assets

lterns of squiprment and intanglble assets are recorded at cost net of any accumulated depreclalion and
amorlizalion, and any accumulated impairment |osses. Cost reprasents the prices bllled by supplfers,
increased by all acquisition-related costs and all costs incurrad in bringing the assets to the location and
condition necessary for thair intended use.

Deprecistion and amortization are calculated on a straight-line basiz at the following prescribed annual
rates in order to write off the assels ovar their estimaled ugeful livas:

Capreciation and Usaful Lifs

Amortization Rata IYears)
Computer equipment 25% 4
Aufomobiles 15.5% 8.5
Telephone switchhoards T%-10% 10-1i4.3
Furnilure 10%-12.5% g-10
Inlenglble asseta 20% 5

The Bank's menagement belisvas that the amorfization and depreciation rates Lhat have been applied
realistically reflect the expected patterns of futurs consumplion of econemlc bensfits from eguipment
and inlangible assets.

The depraclation and amortization of assetz commenge when lhe assels are available for use and
placed on lhe location and In condilisn necessary for them ta operate in a manner inlendad by the

Bank's managemenl

If the useful life of an item of equipment is under a year, Il is ieated as touls or fixtures and is fully
writter-off onge placed inle use.

Impalmment cf Assats

At each stalement of financie! position date, the Bank's management reviews the carrying amounts of
tha Bank's tangibles in order to determine the indicallons of Impairmant loss. If there 13 any indication
thal such assels have been Impairsd, the recoverable amount of the asset is sstimaled |n order lo
determine the extsnt of Impairmant loss. In cases where il is impossible to 233088 the recoverable
amount of an indlvidual messl, the Bank assesses the recoverable value of the cash generaling unit to

which the asset belongs.

The racoverahle amount of an asset or a cash-gensrating unlt 1s the higher of its fair valug 12ss costs 1o
sell and its valus In use, For the purposs of assessing valug in uge, estimated future cash flows are
dizcounted to the present value by applying the discaunt rate grior to faxation reflecling the present
markel astimale of time value of cash and rlsks specifically ralated to the assel In question.

the estimated recoverabls amount of an asset {or cash generating unif} is below its canrylng value, the
carrying amount of the ssset (or cash generaling unit) is reduced to ils recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is immediataly racognized as an expense of ihe current period.

Vhen an impairmenl |083 subsequently reverses, the carrylng amount of lhe esest {or a cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revisad estimate of its recoverable amounl, bul so thet the incrensed
canying amount doss not exceed the carrying amount thet would have besn delenmined had no
Impalrment loss been recognized for the aszel {or cash-generating unif) In prior years. A reversal of an
Impalrment loss is recognized immediately in prefit or less, unless the relevant asset Is carried at a
revalred amount, in which case the reversal of the impairmend loss Is trealed a5 a revaluation Increese.

As of December 31, 2013, In the assessment of the Bank's managamant, thers were no Indlealions that
the valug of equipment and intanglble assets had suffered Impairment.
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MF BANKA, A.D. BANJA LUKA

NGQTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended Dacember 31, 2043
(AN amounis exprassad in thousands of BAM, unless offerwise sfaled)

3.

3.5,

SUMMARY QF S[GN/FICANT ACOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial Assefs

All regular way purchases of sales of financlel essels are recognized and derecognized on a trade date
hasls, .. requirng delivery of assets wilhin the time frame egfablished by regulalion or convention in
the marketplace, and are Initially measured at fair value including transection costs. Financlal asgats ana
classifisd inta the following specified categorlas: loans and recefvables and financlal assels available for
sala. The classification depends on tha nalure and purpese of the financial assets and |s determined at
the time of Inilial recognition.

EXfectiva infarest Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of financial assels and of
allocaling Interes! Income aver the relevant paripd. The effective Interast rate is the rale Lhat exactly
discounts estimaled future cash recelots through the expected life of the finencial asset, or, wherg
appropriate, a shorter period.

Incame is recognizad on an effeclive Interest basts for debl instruments other Ihan those financial assets
classifiad as at falr value threugh profil and loss.

Financlal Assefs Availabfe far Salg

Availabls-for-sala financial assets comprige nvestmenls in equily instrumenls of enterprises and olher
legal entities Lhat ars listed in an active market staled at falr value at the end of each reporting peried.
{rveslments that do not have a‘quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measused are measured at cost. Balng and tesses arising from the changes in ths fair value
direclly affect the equily, |.8. the Investment revaluation reservas, excepl for impairment fasses, interest
calculated using the effective rate method and foreign exchangs ga'ne of losses on monelary assels,
which are recognized In profit and loss. When 1he Investment is disposed of or |s daterminsd o be
impaired, the curulative gain or loss previously accumufated in the investmenls revalualion reserve is

reclassifled to profii or loss.

The falr value of available-for-sale manetary financlal assets denominated in & forelgn currency is
delermined in that forelgn currency and translated al the spot rate prevalling at the staternent af financial
position date. The forelgn exchange gains and losses that ars recognized In profil or loss and ather
comprehenslve income are determined based on the amortized cosl of lhe monelary assat. Cther
foreign exchange galns and loeses are recagnized within equity.

Loans and Racaivables

Loans and olher receivablas wilh fixed or determinsble payments that are aol gucted in an active markel
can b cassified as loans and recelvables. Loans and receivables are measured at amortized cosi
using the effsctive Interest methed, less any Impalrmant. Interest income |2 recognized by applylng the

gffactive inlerast rate.

For the purposs of detemmining amortized cost, i.2. fair value of loans in accordance with IAS/IFRS, the
Bank uges contraclually agreed effeclive interest rate thet adjusts the nat present value of fulure cash
flawa to the neminal value of the loan approved, net of principal repald.

Loane ars conlrastually agresd with a varieble interest rate according to the Bank's business pollcy. The
Bank receives as collaterals payment arders, guarantess, bills of exchange, mortgeges assigned over
property and pledge lisns over movables, deposits and the fike.

Cash and Cash Fqguivalants

Cash and cash equivalents Includs cash on hand, monelary essets held with the Central Bank and
balances on forelgn currency accounts held with domestlc and forsign benks and other deposits
maturing within |sss then three months ferm the placement data.
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MF BANKA A.D. BANJA LUKA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Yaar Endad Dacembar 31, 2013
(ANl amounts expressed in thougands of BAM, unfess olienwise slated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACOUNTING FOLICIES {Continued)]
Financial Assets (Cantlnuady)
impairment of Finenclfal Assals

Financka! assels, other than those at fair value through profit and loss, are assessed for Indicators of
Impairmant at the end of each reparting period. Financial assets are considersd to be impaired when
there |s objective evidence that, as a rasult of one or more gvents that occurred after the [nilisl
recognition of the financlal agael, the estimated futurs cagh flaws of the invastment have bheen affected.

For aquily investments not gquoted in an active market and classified s avallable for sale, a slgnificant or
prolanged decline in the fair value of the securily balow its cost is considerad to be ob|ective svldence of
impairmaent.

For all ofher financial assets, including redeemable sacuritiss classifled as assels avallable for sale, and
finance lease recalvables, abjeclive evidence of Impalment could include:

s significant financial diffculty of the issuer or counterpary, or
+  breach of contracl, such as & default ar delinguency In inlerest or principal payments; or
« it hecoming probable that the borrower will enler bankruptcy or financial re-organization.

For certaln calegories of financial assets, such as Urade recelvebles from loans approved, assets that
are assessed not to bs impalred Individually are, In addifion, assessed for impairmant on & oollective
basis. Objeclive evidence of impalrment for a portfollo of receivables could include the Bank's past
experience of collscling payments, an increase In the number of delayed payments past the maturlty
dates, as well a5 observable changes in national of locg! ecanomic condiions that correlale with default
on recaivakles.

For financlal assets carried at amorlized cost, the amaunt of the impairment loss recognized Is the
difference bstween Ihe assel's carrying amound and the preseni value of sstimaled fulure cash flows,
discounted af the financlal esset's original effective Interest rate,

The carrying amaunt of the financial assel 1s raduced by the impakment logs directiy for all financlal
assets wilh the sxception of trade receivalles, where the carrylng amount is reduced thraugh the use of
an allowance accaunt. YWhen a frade receivable is consldered uncollactible, it 13 written off against the
allowance accounl. Subseguent racoverizs of emounts previously writlen off are cradiled against the
allowance aceount. Changes In the carrying amount of Ihe allewance accounl are recognized |n profil or
lase and other comprehensive income,

Except for securilies available for sale, if, in a subsequent pericd, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can bs related objectivaly to an event oocurring after lhe impairment was
recognized, The previously recognized impaltment Ioss is reversed through profit or logs to the axtant
that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does nol exceed what
the amorlized cost would have been had the impairment not bean recognized.

In respecl of AFS equity securitles, impairment losses previously recognized in profit or loss are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in falr velue subsequant to an impairment loss I3

recognized within aquily.
Derecogmition of Fihangial Assels

The Bank derecognizes a financlal assat only when lhe contractual righls to the cash flows from the
agset expira, or when It {ransfers the financial meset and subatantislly all the tisks and rewards of
ownarship of Ihe asset to anather entiy. If the Bank nsither transfers nor retains substantfally all the
risks ang rawattds of ownsrship and retains conleal over a financizl agsed, It continues recognize such an

azset.
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MF BANKA A.D. BANJA LUKA

NOTES TO THE FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS
Yaar Ended December 31, 2013
{Alf amounts expressed i housands of BAM, unless offerwise slated.)

3
3.6,

37

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACOUNTING POLIGIES [Coentinuad)

Financla! Llabllities

Financial liabilities comprise long-term and shori-term trade payables and olher libilitiss.

Financial Fabititiss are initially recognizad al the amounts receivad. Subsequent to the Inltlal recognition,
financlal llabliles are measured at the inflially recognized amounts net of principal repaymenl and
increased by capilalized Inferest less any wiite-off granted by the creditor. Financial llabllilies are stated
at amorized cosl using the affective interest rats. Inlerest accrued on financlal lisbililiss is charged to
finance of the respective peried and presentad wilhin ofher currenl lishilitias,

The Bank derecognizes financial liabilities when tha Bank's obligations ara discharged, cancelled or they
have expirad.

Taxes and Sontributions
Current incore Tax

Current income tax relates to the amount payable in accordance with the Income Tex Law. Current
incame tax is payable at the rate of 10% applied to the tax bass determined in the taxa balence and
reported In the anmial corperate income fax return, belng the emount of profit befors laxation net of
incoma and expense adjuslment effects pursuant o the tax regulalions of the Republic of Sipska.

The tax regulations In the Republic of Srpeka allow far the reduction of the fax bass for the amounts
used in capital expenditures, for restaration of own manufacturing activity and far the amounts of the
payroll taxes and contributions for over 30 newly employsd slaff members at the end of the financial
YOar,

The 1ax regulations in the Rapublic of Srpska do not envissge that any tax losses of the current pariod
be used to recover faxes paid within a speciiic carryback period. However, current perlad tex losses
stated in tax retumn may be used lo reduce or sliminale taxes 1o be paid In future periods but only for
durallon of no tonger than five ensulng years.

Cefarred lncome Texes

Deferred Income tax is determined using the balance sheet llabllity method, for lemporary differences
arising betwesn the tex bases of assets and llabllties components, and thelr carrying values in tha
conzolidated finencial statements, The currently enacted tax rates al the statsment of financie! position
date ars used ta determing the deferrad Income tax amount. Deferred tax kabilities are recognized for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred 1ax asssts are racognized for deductible temporary diffsrences,
and the tax effacls of incoms tax losses and credits avallable for carry forward, to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be avallable against which deferred tax assets may be utllized.

frdivect Taxes and Contrpuiions

Indirect taxes and contribulions includs peyroll contributions charged to the amployer, propery taxes,
and various clher taxss and cantributions, included in other operaling axpanses,
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HOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended Decembar 31, 2013
fAF amounts sxpressed in thousands of BAM, Unless olftsrwise sfefad.)

3.8,

3.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
Employag Eanefits

In accordance with regulatory regulrements, the Bank is cbllgated Lo pay contribulions to government
social sacurity funds ang penslon funds that are caloutated by applying specific, legally prescribed
pereentages. These obligations involve the payment of faxes and contributions on behalf of employses,
by the employer, in an amount caleulated In accordance wilh the stalutory regulations, The Bank Is also
legally obligated to withhold contributions from gross salaries to employses, and on behalf of Il
employess, to transfer the withheld portlang direclly to the appleeble government funds. Thass taxes
and cenfributions payable an behalf of the employees and employer are charged as expanses In tha
petlod In which they arise.

In accordance with the retulrernents of 1AS 19 *Employes Benefits" the Bank performe the acluarfal
valuation of provisions &0 es to determine the present valus of sccumuleted employee relirement
benefits, Upon retlrement, the Bank's employees become antitled to retirerment benefits In an amount
equaling three menthly seleries eamed by the vesling employee.

Expenses of retirement benefits are determined using the projected unit credit methed for actuarial
valualion as of the ba'ance sheet date. Accordingly, the Bank engaged an Independent certifled actuary
to calculale tha prassnt value of accumulated smployee entittemenls to retirement beneflts as of
December 31, 2013 on behalf of the Bank In tha celoulation of the present value of accumulaled
amployea entiflements to refirement bensfits, the cedified actrary used the following assumptions:
projectad salary growth of 2.9% annually, years of service required for ratirament — 40 yaars for men
and 35 years for women, projected employee t(urnover based on dala on historical employee turnover in
the prior period, offfclally pubilished modality retes [n the reglon in the prier period, as well as other
requirements necessary to exercise rights o a retirement bensfil. In tha opinlon of the managemant, tha
amounts presenled |n the financlal slatements reflect the real velue which is most reliable and ussful for
the neads of the Ananclal reporting under the current clreumetancss.

Laasos

Leases are classified as finance lsasas whenever the terms of the lsase transfer substantially all rlsks
and rewards of ownership to the lezgee. All olher leases ara classified as operating leases.

The Benk as a Lessor

Lease income from operallng leases [rantals) Is recognized In Moome an a strafght-line basls over the
lease term. Inilial direct costs incurred by lessors in negelialing and arranging an operaling lsase are
added ta 1he carrylng amount of the Izased asset and recognized a& an expenee over the lease lerm on
the same basis as the leass income.

The Bank as & Lesses

Leaze payments under an operating leaze ara recognlzed a3 an expense on & slralght-ling basls over
the feass term unless another systematic basis is more reprosentative of tha time paltern of tha user's
benefit. Conlingent feas arising from operating leasge are recognized as expenses in the periods in

which they arise.

In the evenl thel lease incentives are received to enter inke operating leases, such incantives are
recoanlzad as a llablily. The aggregete benefit of incentives is recognized as a reduction of rental
expenes on a slraight-ling basls, except whera another syslemalic basls (3 mara rapresentallve of the
time petlern in which econcmic benefils from the leased asset are consumed,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The presentation of the financlal slatements reguires Ihe Bank's managemend 1o maks best estimates
and reasoneble essumplions that influence the assels and lablitles amounts, az well as the disclosure
of contingent |labilltlies and recaivables as of 1he date of preparation of the financial statements, and 1he
income and expenses arlsing during the accounling period. These estimatlons and sssumptlang are
basad on information available to the manggement, as of the date of preparation of tha finandal
slatementa. However, actual fulure amounts may degart from the eslimates.
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MF BANKA A.D, BANJA LUKA

HOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended Decamber 51, 2013
fAl amounits expressed in thousands of BANM, unleas ofhenwise slated.}

4, SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

The estimates and underying assumptions are reviewed on an engoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the gslimate is revised If Ihe revision affecls only that
period or In the period of the revision and future perfods If the revision affacls both currenl and fulure
periods.

Basic assumplions relating 1o the future events and other significant sources of uncaralntles in
rendering an eslimate as of the staterent of financlal position date, whish bears the risk thet may tead
to significant restatemenl of the net book value of assels and liabilitiss n the ensuing financlel year,
wera as follows:

Estimated Useltil Life of Equipment and infangible Assefs

The eslimate of usefu! life of equipment and Intanglble assets is founded on the historlcal axpertance
with similar assets, as wsl{ as foreseen technical advancement and changss in economic and indfustrial
factors. The adeguacy of the seslimated remalning useful life of fiued assets is analyzad annually, or in
casas where thers are Ingications of significant changes In certain assumptions,

Impairment of Assels

At sach statement of financial posilion date, the Benk’s management reviews the carrylng amounts of
the Bank's assels for the Indicelions of impairment losz. If thera is any indicalion that such assets have
been Impalred, the recoverable amount of the asset is sstimated In order 1o determing tha extenl of the
impairmsnt loss. If the recoverable amounl of en agset is estimaled to be less than its carrylng value,
the carrying amount of the azset 1s reduced to its recoverable amounl,

Alfowance for Impairent of Receivablas

At sach reporting date the bank assesses whather there is objestive evidence that Indlividue! financizl
aseats or groupg of financial assels have suffered impaimment. The Bank caloutates the Impalrment of ils
recelvables in accordance with IAS 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognilion and Measuremenl' and I1AS
37 *Provisions, Contingent Assels and Contlngent Liabililiss™ as well as the regufations of the Banking
Agency of the Republls of Srpska. The management assssess thal gllowance for Impaiment of
racelyables in addifion to the amount already recognized in tha financial statements |s not necessary.

At each month snd, the Bank caloulates impalrment losses contingenl on defaulls and irrecoverability
and provislons theraof by applying the following two methodalogies:

1) mathodology for calsulatlon of the aforesald provisions based on IAS 38 "Financial Instrumenls:
Recegnitian and Measurament,” used for internal and extemal reporting purposes of tha Bank, and

2) methodalogy for calculalion of the aforesaid provisians prascribed by the BARS and used
exclusivaly for reporling to the regulator (FARS).

According to IAS 38 “Flnanclal Instruments: Recopnition and Measurement," the Bank revisws the loan
portfolio In order to determing allowance for impalrment and provisions on & monlhiy basis. Information
lhat may indicate (he losses on loans Include customer creditworthiness, iregularily and defaults in
sething liabilities, markel and economic condlfions on a local level conditloning defaults in setting
tabililies and the iike. Managemsnt's assessments regarding the Impairment in fnanglal Inatruments
within the loan portfello insludad in the Bank's portfolio by way of assessing fulure cash flows are based
on gctual historical losses incurred on financial szsets with similar causes of Impaliment.

The Bank calculates Impalirmant for all customears that are over 50 days in default with payments. The
Bank recognizes impairment losses up to lhe emount of recoverable value of loanefnvestments

measUred at amortized cost.

Impalrmenl loss is The difference batwesn Ity present valus (amortized cost) and ils recovarable value.
The recoverable value is the presenl valus of expected cash inflows from assets, Increased by the
expected future inflows from collatarals, net of presant value of callection charges.

Impairment [osees are charged 1o Lhe statement of profit and loss and other comprehensiva income, The
amounts of impalrmen logses un |oans/ investmants are reflacled on the allowance account.

14
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HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Endad December 34, 2013
fAll amounts expressed In iftousands of BAM, unfess olharwiss stated.)

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Affowanoa for impefment of Recelvables (Confinued)

Where an impairment logs subsegquently reverses due to events thet emerged after Its Inltlel
recognition, the reversal is credited to statement of profit and ioss and other comprahensive incoms,
but the amount of raversal may nol exceed the amounl of amorlized cost that would have been
detarmined and recopnlzed as at the impalrment reversat date had no Impairment loss besn praviously
recognized.

The Bank first sssesses whelher there is objeclive avidence of Individual-level impairment for an
individually significant asset or of group-level impairmend for financial assets that are not Individually
signiftcant. If the Bank determines ihat thare | no chjeclive svidence of individual-level impairment of &
financial assef, whelher it be significant or nol, such an asssl s Included Into a group of assets with
similar credit risk characterslica and asaeasad far Impalrment collactively, i.e. on a group lavel.

According to the Pank's inlemal melhodology for impairmant allowances calculatlon, Individually
significant exposure |3 conzldered to be each exposure in excess of BAM 10 thousand. Olher
exposures, 1.6, other bank's receivables are subject to individual sssessment for Impairment dua to the
specificity of each individusl recaivable. The procedure of impainment aseessment is performed for all
recelvablas defined as malerially significant by the inlemaly adopted mefhodology. Materially
significant amounts are amounts abowve:

s 2.6% of the indivldual Bank's recaivable due from a private [ndividual debtor, but not below BAR 50,
and
« 2.5% of tha ndividual Bank's receivable due from a tagal enfity deblor, but not below BAM 150,

The Bank assesses whether a loan is individuvally significant for Individuslly signiicant exposures {in
exgess of BAM 10 thousand) In default, i.e. [hose thal are over 80 days past due. Based on the defined
critarla the Risk Management Beparimend finds loans eliglble for [ndividual assessment. Afler the
review of such loans, the Risk Management Deparment propeses loans eligihle for calsulatian of
Individual-level impairment allowance, end lhe remeining loans are referred to the pofollo-level
assesamaent of impairment and calculation of impalrment allowances, The propasals made by the Risk
iMenagement Deparment are verified by the bank's Managing Board. For sach indlvidual calculallon of
impairment allowance a form named “Analysls of Impairmenl Evidence” is craated and enclosad with
the cradit fila of the bornower.

Individual impairment allowanca | caltulated as the difference belwesn the total expoeure and the sum
of discounted cash flows (ffom regular repayment and collateral foreclosure) for the specific
borrowerfexpasure

The Bank has defined the minimum amount of impeirment allowance for individually assessed
exposures wilhoul guelily collateral as follows:

+ for exposures with repayment from 90 to 180 days pest due, impairment allowance amounts ko
minirmiam 20% of the exposure, and
« for exposures wilh repayment over 180 days past due, impairment allowance amounts to minimum

55% of the exposure,

Al loans and advances that are not individually impaired are subject to group or portfolio-laval
assessment and calcutation of impairment. Loans/orrowers are classified inlo homogenous groups
with idenlical ar similar characterislics and subgroups depending on tha number of days the repayment
i& in arrears. For all exposures ncluded In Lhe porfolic-level calculation of impairment allowance the
exposure is divided into the sacured and unaecured porlien. The unsecured porlion of leans is
calculatzd as Ihe difference betwesn the tolal exposure and tha recagnlzed valus of collatersl. The
Bank's internal methodolagy defines the waights for recognlzed value of collaterals, depending on the

collataral typs.

Portfalio-level Impairment allowancs is calculaled as followa: an impainment allowsnce percenlage
defined for the spacific groupfsubgroup of loans is applied to tha uneecured portion of the expesure and
multiplied with the average loes confirmatlon perled (LECF).
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Yoar Ended Dacembar 31, 2013
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MF BANKA A.D. BANJA LUKA

d, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES {Continued)

Allowance for Impsirment of Receivatles (Conlinued)

In accordance with BARS Decislon on Classification of Balanca Shest assats and Off-balance Shest
ltems according to Racoverabliity, the Bank Is oblfgated to classify loans, advances and other balance
shqai and off-balence sheet sxposures Into catsgories A, B, C, D and E In accordance with the
estimate of thalr recoverabilily, Classification is performed based on the regufarity In liabilily settlemsnt
on the part of the borrowers, financial posilion of the borrewsrs and collaterals. The estimated amount
of provisions for potential losses s celculated by applying percenlages prescribed by the aforecited

BARS Deacision,

The difference between allowancs Impairmant amounls in sccontancs with 1AS 39, detarmined in the
aforedescribed manner and the estimated amount of provisions lor potential losses par loans classified
into categories pursuvant fo the BARS Decision represents the amount of shortfall reserves as per
regulatory requirement, which Is stated as an item deductible from caplial.

g INTEREST INCOME

Interest income from:

- publlc seclor

- redail customers

- corporate customers

- Gentral Bank

- other banks

- non-profit organizalionz
- other

Total:

Interest income from retall custormners include interest income from privats indhdduats in the amount of

YYaar Endad Decembear 31,

2013 2012
164 230
6,084 3.071
5,184 3,803
8 4
- 3
6 18
52 d
10 507 7 132

BAM 4,172 thousand and from entrepreneurs In the amount of BAM 921 thousand.

6. INTEREST EXPENSES

Interest expenses:

- pUbllc sector

- ratail customers

- hanks

- non-banking finance nstifullons
= gorporate customers

- non-profit arganizalions

- gther

- interast on horrowings

Total:

Year Ended Dagember 31,

2013 2012
413 307
ao0 158
203 174

1175 V44
108 8

] 8

38 38
1.632 444
41478 1,988

16




Pre——-

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2013

{Ai amounts expressed in fotsands of BAM, unfess otherwise stafed.)

[

FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Sale and purchasa of currencies

Fee and commigslon Income arsing from domeslic paymsnt

transaclions
Loan origlnation fees
Fees for off-balance sheel aperalions

Total:

FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSES

Sale and purchase of curencles

Fee and commlesion payabls 1o the Central Bank for
domestic paymenl transfers

Fea and commlzslon expense arfsing from

international payment transaclicns

Paymenticred!t card operation fees

Loan processing fees

Othar fees and comimissions

Total:

OTHER OFERATING INGOME

Suspendsd interasl coliscted
Cther income

Total:

MF BANKA A.D. BANJA LUKA

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012
arg 108
629 od2
238 a2
117 -

1,380 742

Year Ended Decamber 31,

2013 22

81 40
1) 51
12 &
198 218
4 &5
14 9
463 arr

Year Endad Decamber 31,

23 2012

234 204
a1 J4

35 228
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2013
AN amolints expragsed i housands of BAM, unfess otherwise stafed.)

10,

1.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Grose salariea and benefits

Olher benefits, remunsrations to the Supervigony Board, Audit
Committes

Professional tralnings and educalion of employees

Cost of malerials and services

Busginess Irp expenses incurred in the country and abroad

Telecomminication and postage sanylces

Equipment maintenance

Marksting and advertising

Renlal casts

Wemberghip fees

Enterfainment

Securily services

Depraciation and amortization chargs

Tawes and contributions

Fees payable to the Banking Agency of RS

Write-off of uncollectabla recelvables

Feas for third party engagements

CHher

Total:

PROVISIONS FOR POTENTIAL LOSSES
a) Provislons Chargedf{Credlted) to the Income, Net

Assots held with olher banks

Laans o cusiomers

Interest recalvables and olher assats
Employes benefits

Cantingent liabilities and commliments

Total:

MF BANKA A.D. BANJA LUKA

Year Ended Decamber 31,

2013 2012
3841 2,737
07 80
13 )
243 220
26 3
234 176
278 235
260 142
583 431
48 45
7 25
351 309
443 328
87 54
104 .78
81 g
12 7
6 240
&,044 514

Yagr Ended Dacember 31,

2013 2012
(1} -
{380) {86)
35 26

- B
(2] 38
(348} {18)
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MF BANKA A.D. BANJA LUKA

NOCTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 203
(AN amounts expressed in thousands of BAM, unless otharwise slaled.)

11. FROVISIONS FOR POTENTIAL LOSSES [Continued)
b) Movements for the Year on the Long-Term Provlsions for Potential Losees and Commitments
2012 and 2012
Aggafx
Hald with Interast Contingant
Cthar Loans to and Other Employee  Llabllitizs and
Banks _ Customers Asgels Benaflls  Commliments Tolal
Balance, Januvary 1, 2002 - 604 7 16 i | 7B
Purchase of portfolio - 2,002 20 - - 2022
Charge lor the year - 3300 131 8 223 3,600
Revaraal of provislons - (3 388) {1086) - {187} (3,678}
Balence, Decambar 31, 2012 - 2,610 a3 22 &7 2,782
Purchase of portiole (Hole 14 ) - 149 - - - 140
Charge for tha year 4] A2T5 K] - 202 3,521
Reverzal of pravigions {5} (2,895} 73 - {200) {5,473}
Balance, Decamber 31, 2013 1 3,130 48 22 5L 1270
12, CASH AND BALANCES HELD WITH THE CENTRAL BANK
Bacember 31, Dacember 31,
2013 2012
Cash
- In BAM 1,852 1,573
- in foreign cumrencies 825 1,116
Bafances with the Central Bank In BAM:
- Chligatory resane 6,485 4,139
- Gynd aceound 25,676 6817
Total 34 748 13,774
Pursusnt te the Decision of the Ceniral Bank of Bosnia and Herzegoving regarding reserve
requirements, the Bank has to caloulate and maintain an obllgatory ressrve of the average balance of
the Bank's tolal deposits {which serva as a basls for computing Ihe obligalory reserve) according 1o the
average balance found al the end of work days of len calendar days praceding the projestion. The
ohligatory reserve is calculated as the sum of 10% of the tata! deposiis maturing within a year and 7%
with over ane year maturities. The basls for computing the obligatory reserve includes calculated
inlerest, fees and commissions duea.
This resanve is avallable for liquidity purpeses. The Cantral Bank of Bosnia and Harzegoving sconues
and pays interest at the rale ranging from 0.004% 1o 0.128% to Ihe amount of cbligatory reserve, while
the amount of resources excesding the calculeted obligatory reserve accrues Interest at the rate
determined as the average of interest ratas reallzed over the same period by the Central Bank on the
rmarket based on its up-to-one manth deposits (0.05% 1o 0.165%).
Buring 2013, the Bank maintained the cbligatory reserve amount within the legally prescribed limiks.
13, REPQSITS HELD WITH OTHER BANKS

Intereat Cacembar 31, Dacembar 31,
Rafes 2013 2012

Dua from banks:
- forelgn banks 0.00%-0.01% 4,660 3,826
- domeslic banks 491 474
5 161 4 100
Lass: Correction of value of funds {1 -
Tatal 5 160 4,100
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HOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended Dacembar 31, 2013
{Al amounts sxpressed in tholisands of BAM, unlass otieraise statad.)

14, LOANS TO CUSTOMERS
December 31, Decembar 31,

2013 2012
Short-tarm leans In BAM - up to 1 year 21,868 20,358
Lang-term lpeng In BAM - over 1 year 63,847 45,755
Current portion of long-term loans in BAM 26 500 18,488
112,215 45,608
Less: Allowanca for impairment of loans to customers {3.138) (25100
Total 108,076 82998

The major portion of shori-term loans in BAM was plaged with demeslic corporate and relall customars
at annual intsrest rales ranalng from 8% to15.5%, whereas the minimum and mexlmuen annual interest
rates spplled to such loans equaled 3% and 22%, respectively. The annual interest rate of 3% was
approved to the customers with 2 100% earmarked term deposit placed with the Bank as coliateral,
while the interesl rates highsr than 16.6% refer 1o the shor-term lpans assumed from MKD Mikrofin
d.c.0. Banfa Luka. Short-term lcens were sscuritized with bills of exchange, surefies and pledge llens
assiqned over movables and morgagss azsigned ovar propery.

The largest porion of loans extended 1o retail customers refate to transaction account overdrafts and
consuimer lyans, whils the |argest perllon of the loans approved lo corporate customers represent loans
for working capital and liguldity maintenanca.

Most long-ferm loans in BAM were extanded to corporate and retail customers at annual Intarest rates
ranging from 8% to 14% for periods of maximum 10 years, wilh respective minimum and maximum
interest rales of 3.32% and 18% annually. The minimum inlerest rate of 3.32% was approved to the
customers with & 100% earmarked tenm deposlt placed with he Bank as collateral, while the interesl
rates higher than 14% refer to (he short-term loans assumed fram MKD Mikrefin d.o.0. Banja Luka. The
aforesaid loans were securitized mosily with high quality collalerals such as mortgages and pledge liens
asslgned over movahles. In 2013 the Bank approved loans from the funds of the Investment and
Development Bank of the Republic of Srpska (iDB RS") for perieds of over 10 and up to 20 ysars in
aceordence wilh the rules of IDB RS,

The largest porlon of long-term loans approved 1o relall customers includad general consumer loans,
housing loans for purchess and construction and adaptation of homes, while the corporate tong-term
Ivans were inlended for financing capital expendilures and investments and working capital.

The geographical concentration of loans approved to customers as included in the Bank's loan perifoliv
mastly comprises customesrs domicilad in the Republic of Srpska.

Loans Purchased from MKD Mikrofin d.0.0,, Banfa Luke

in tha first half of FY 2013, the Bank enterad into two Agreements on AssignmentfAssumption of
Recelvables for a Conslderallon whereby it assumed 371 loans from the related party MKD Mikrofin
d.0.0., Banja Luka, The conslderalion at which the afareseid loan portfolio was iransferred equals the
smount of net recslvebles as of the transaction date measured In ascordance wilh the requiremenls of
IAS 39 "Flnancial Instruments: Recognilion and Measurement® applying the inlernal methodology of
MKD Mikrofin d.0.0., Benja Luka, so thet from these transactions ihe Bank earnedfinourred neilher
posilive nor negative effests to be included In the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive

income,

The net carrying value of the receivables assumad per the aforesaid Agreements in 2013 totaled BAM
3,688 lhousand, The surmary of effects of the aforesaid loan porifolle purchase transactivns in 2012
and 2013 is pravided in the following table:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Yegar Ended Docember 31, 2013
(AN amounits expressed in thousands of BAM, unfess offisrwise staled.)

14.

14.

LOANS TO CUSTOMERS {Continued)

Loans Purchased from pMHD Mikrofin d.o.0., Banja Luka (Continued}

MF BANKA A.D. BANJA LUKA

Leans to Inferast
Custamers Accrued
The amount of recelvables per loans in 2012 24 468 352
L ass: Impairment allowance (2.004) {18)
Loan portfolio purchased in 2012 22 464 334
The amaount of receivables par loans In 2013 3,7e3 42
Less: Impairment allowance {148} -
Loan porifollo purchased in 2013 3,644 42
EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASEETS
2013 and 2012
Leasahold Equipmant Intenglble Total
Improve- In Total Intanglble  Assats In  Intangibla
monis Equipment  Progress Equipment Aazols Progress Assals
Cost
Balance, January 1, 2012 a7 746 167 960 &78 103 &81
Additicns &4 46 (152} 748 263 {103} 160
Balance, December 31, 2012 10 1,582 15 1,708 B - 841
Additlona a7 525 () 813 88 - Eg
Disposals {48} (67} - (113 - - -
Balanca,
Dacambar 31, 2013 152 2,080 B 2,208 pza . 823
Accumulated
Dapreclation/Amortization
Balange, January 1, 2012 2 J63 B KL 302 - g2
Charge for the yaar 17 17% - 182 137 - 137
Balance, December 31, 2012 10 538 - 5587 438 - 439
Charge for the year 26 252 - 278 1685 - 163
Disposals (18} (413 - {57} - - -
Balance,
Cacamber 31, 2013 28 743 - Fili-] 604 - 804
Net Book Valus:
-« at December 21, 2013 123 1,501 & 1,430 325 - 325
- at Decamber 31, 2012 a2 1,054 15 1,151 402 - 402

As of December 31, 2013, equipment was [nsured against generel risks. The Bank had ne

encumbrances or pledges egainst its equipment.
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16.

ACCRUED INTEREST AND OTHER ASSETS

(h BAM:

- malured interest recelyables

- advances paid

- ather recelvables

- inventories of materials

- deferred receivables for agorued interest
- glher expenss dafarrals

In foreign currencles:

- deferred raceivables for expenses accnied
- forelgn currency advances

- gther foreign currency receivables

Less: Allowance for Impelrment of aogmigd Interest and other
assels

Total:

MF BANKA A.D. BANJA LUKA

Decambar 31, December 31,
2013 2012
bN | 30
2 8
143 4
53 59
482 7T
107 a8
208 228
11 11
& 12
1,048 B53
48 {83}
1,000 770
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NOTES TO THE FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Al amounts expressed i thousands of BAN, unless ofharvise slated.)

7.

CUSTOMER AND BANK DEPOSITS

MF BANKA A.D. BANJA LUKA

December 31, Decambar 31,
2013 2092
Demand daposits in BAM:
- Gowernment and stata institulicne &1 86
- corporate customers 1,743 1,771
- nan-banking financlal institutlons 7,056 5,743
- retail customers 36 1,679
- non-prefit organizations 101 53
- ather customers 126 150
14,310 5,382
Demand deposlis in foreign currancies:
- corporate customears 282 88
- non-banking financial nstilutions 87 11
- non-profit organlzalions 1 -
- non-residents g 2
- ratail customers 1.058 474
1,447 555
Short-lerm deposits in BAM:
- Govarnment and state ineliutions 1,000 1,000
- corporala customers 22 -
- banks and banking institulions 5,000 §,000
- nen-banking financlal (nstilulions 16,319 16,750
- retall customers 152 70
22402 225820
Short-term depesils [n forefgn currencles:
- ratail customers 186 44
186 44
Long-term deposils In BAM.
- nan-kanking financial institulions 4,000 4,218
- Governmant and stete (nslilutions 10475 8,625
- corporete customers 2,502 3,347
- non-profit organlzations 2.608 2,580
- retail customers 5,B22 1,348
- other customers 200 900
20 407 18,018
Long-tarm deposits In forelgn currencies:
- corporate customers 1,585 72
- retall cuslomers 16,016 3,419
17 581 4,201
Total: 82 424 58 020

Demand deposits of corporale endilies and entrepraneurs in BAM and forelgn curenciss accrued
Inlerest at the rate of 0.1% to 2.52% annually, applylng the confomily method,

Intarest on demand sevings deposils of retall customers and transaction secounts in BAM and EUR [s
calculated at the annual rate of 0.1% using the stralght-ine method. Retail demand deposits In ofher
foreign currencles do nol accrus interasl,

Savings demand deposits — apen savings in BAM and EUR accrued intersst at the rates of 0.1% to
5.2% annually by applying the conformiy method,

Short-term deposits of corparate entilies and entrepreneurs in BAM and EUR warg placed gt tha Interest
rates ranging from 1.25% to 5.07% annually,

Short-lerm deposits of relall cuslomers in 8AM and EUR wers pfaced at tha interest rates ranging fram
1.75% fo 4% annually.
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MF BANKA A.D. BANJA LUKA

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended Decembaer 31, 2013
{All amounts expressed in frousands of BAM, unless otherwise slated.}

17.

CUSTCMER AND BANK DEFOSITS (Continued)

Long-tarm deposits of retell customers In BAM and EUR were placed at the Interest rates ranging from
0% to 6.6% annually {cerain eamnarked deposits were placed as collalerals to securltize loan
repayment and contfractually defined as non-inferest bearing).

Long-term deposits of retail customers in BAM and EUR wsre placed al the interest rates ranging frem
4.30% fo B.80% annually,

The Bank applies tha confarmily method to calculata the intarast on lerm deposils, whereas it may apply
the proporiionats inlersst caleulallon method on deposiis placed by other banks, In aceordance wilh the
contractually agreed terms.

Depending on the market conditions, and in cases of pericular gignificance for the Bank, lhe
management may enact specific decisions on the implermentatien of interest rates up to 1 percentage
point higher than the Interast ralas defined by the internally adopted acts of the Bank,

18. BORROWINGS

Cecambar 31, Decembear 31,
2013 22
In BAM:
- RS Development and Employment Fund 4,021 2232
= RS Houslng Fund 2,194 72
- Fund for Development of Eastern Reglon of RS 2,288 950
Tolal in BAM: 8,501 3,954
In forgign currencies:
-EFSE| 6,521 8,778
-EFEEI 5,887 -
- ki 5,216 7,823
-EERD 8,708 3912
- Responsdhilily SICAY 9,778 -
Total in foreign currencies: 34 0RG 21,514
Total: 42 690 25,458
Current portions:
-EFSE 5,214 3,258
- Ky 2,608 2,608
- EBRD 2,235 1,118
- RESPONSABILITY 3,280 -
-RB 873 131
Tofal current portions 13,080 7,115

As of Degember 34, 2013, the tolal balance of funds received from the funds managed by the

Investmant and Devalopment Bank of RS amountsd 1o BAM 8,501 thousand,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Endad December 31, 2013
(Al amotints expressed in thousands of BAM, unless ofherwise staled.)

18,

19.

BORROWINGE {Continited)

In addllioh to he aforesald, the Bank entered into loan agregmenls with forelgn creditors at the following
ferms:

. EFSE, the Netherlands: loan amount, EUR 5 miltion; loan repaymant peried: 3.7 years wilh a ona-
year graoa period; intarast rate applied: EURIBOR or LIBOR plus maximum markup of 4.75%;

. EFSE, ths Nelherlands, s of Jung 28, 2013; loan amount; EUR 2 miltion, fean repayment perlod: 2
years with & one-year grace period; Inerest rate applied: EURIBOR or LIBOR plus maximum
markup of 4,75%:;

- KA, Gsrmany: loan amount: EUR 4 million; loan repayment period: 3.4 years with a 10-month
grace period; interest rate applied EURIBOR plus maximum markup of 4.5%;

. EBRD, U¥: loan gmount: EUR 4 million; loan repayment period: 3.4 yaars wilh 8 one-year grace
pericd; interest rate applled: EURIROR plus maximum markup of 4.75%;

- Responsabilily {Funds), Luxembourg, as of September 30, 2013, and Decsmber 18, 2043
respective loan smeounts; EUR 2 million and EUR 3 milllen loan repayment period: 3 years; Intarest
rata applied: 5.75%.

The barrawed funds are intended for financing loans to customers for the following purposes: purchase
of properly, plant and equipment, financing working capital, investmsnts, startup micro, small and
medium-sized entarprises and antrepreneurs,

Loan Agrasment Covanants

Pursuant to [he loan agreements entered Inta with creditors, the Bank is obligated ko comply with certain
procedures and accounting records Thal adequately reflect the Bank's operatians In accondance with 148
and IFRS and cerlain financlal covenants.

As of December 31, 2013, the Benk was in full compllance with all individual covenants from &ll lhe
ralevant loan agreements,

SUBORDINATED DERT
Decamber 31, Dacambar 31,
2013 2012
KR, Garmany 302 -
Total: 3.2 -

On December 18, 2013, the Bank and KA Germany executed an agreemenl on subordinated debt
amcunling to EUR 2 million for & perlod of 5 years, with one-off repayment at Interest rate of 7%
gnnually intended far strengthening the Bank's lotel capital.

A5 of Decembar 31, 2013, the Bank included the subordinatad loan in the caltulation of lts net capital
upen previously oblainsd apptoval from BARS. After the expiry of the 5-yeer pariod, the Bank must not
repay The subordinated debt if such repayment would resulf In decrease in the Bank's capital below tha
prescribed lsvel. The Bank is obligated to oblain the approval from BARS prior to commencement of the
subordinated loan repaymant.
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21.

22,

OTHER LIABILITIES
Dacember 31, Dacember 31,
2rm3 2042
In BAM:
- deferred payablas for acorted Interest 374 245
- frade payvables 120 108
- other liabilitias 155 83
- dafarred income 410 514
In foreign currency:
- trade payables 1] i3
- defarred payables for accrued Interest 544 156
- other liakilities 11 12
Tofal: 2,029 1,232

Defarred [neome in BAM totaling BAM 810 thousand as of December 31, 2013 mostly relate {o the joan
processing fees collected in advance from custorners.

CAPITAL
Shara Capital

The share capital of the Bank was formed from the [niflal Investmanls of shareholders and the
subsequenl capltal increase - share subscriptions pald In cash. The Bank's share capital as of
Decamber 31, 2013 tolaled BAM 28,000 thousand and was comprised of 280,000 shares with & per
value of BAM 100 par share.

The ownsrship structura of the Bank's share capltal according to the excerpt provithed by Lhe Central
Reglsfry of Securities of the Republic of Srpeka as of December 31, 2013 did not change as compared
to that of Decernber 31, 2012 and was the following:

Shara
Count BAN 000 %
MKD Mikrofin d.o.0., Banja Luka 258,000 25,800 g90.23
BUIF Mikrolfin invest d.o.o., Banja on behalf and for
the account of CIF Mikrafin plus a.d. Banja Luka 2.000 200 0.77
260,000 26,000 100,00
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Year Ended December 31,
pig k] 2012
Met praflt for Ihe year {in thousands of BAM) 285 585
Weighted average number of shares issued 260,000 280,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in BAM) 1.14 2.29
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23.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

a) Payment guarantees, performance bonds and other irrevocable commitments

Decamber 31, Dacember 31,

2013 2012

Faymenl guaranlees 1.810 2113
Performance bonds 1.386 247
Irrevocable commitments for undravm lcang 4,425 3,14?
Unused account pverdrafls and credlt card facilitiss 2oabd 2010
Total: 8,978 7,017

The largast portion of imevocable commitmends for Undrawn |cans refers to the unuged frame joan
Intenched for inanclal monlitorng In the amount of BAM 2,144 thousand and unused revolving loan
approved 1o the majority shareholder (MKD Mikrofln d.o.o., Banja Luka) of BAM 2,000 thousand.

As of Decernber 31, 2013, provislons for potantlal losses per of-balance sheet items totaled BAM 69
thousand (December 31, 2012: BAM 67 thousand, Nate 11 B)).

b} Litigation

Ag of Decamber 31, 2013, the Bank was involvad in 183 legal sults flled agalnst deblors in altsmpts to
collect malured receivables. The total valus of claims sought in these proceedings aggregated to BAM
3.085 housand, Provialons for polenltial losses in this respect were formed in the ameunt of BAM 814

thousand,

Az of December 31, 2013, there was a single legal sult involving the Bank as a defendant. Glven the
natura of the lawsuil, tha bank’s management eslimates that the Bank will iIncur ne maleria! logses upon

the outcome thereof.
¢] Regulatory Compliance

The Bank is obligated to reconcllz the volume of ils business operations with the fegally prescribed
adeguacy and performance ralics, i.e. to malntaln the scope and structure of its assets in complianca
wilh the accounling standards and ragulations of the Republic of Srpska, established and controlled by
the Banking Agency of the Republlc of Srpaka.

As of Decarmber 31, 2013, the Bank was in compllance wilh the accounting standards and regulations of
the Republic of Srpaka, establizhed and conlrolled by the BARS par &ll the prescribed ralios.
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NOTES TC THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended Decamber 31, 2013
A amounts expressed in thousands of BAM, unless ofhervwise stafed)

RELATED FARTY TRANSACTIONS

Agspts:

Recsivables from loans 1o the Bank's menagemend and

employess

Total prepald insurance expenses:
- Mikrafin ¢&lguranje 2.d., Banja Luka
Total prepaid licansa fees:

- MF Software o.o.0., Banja Luke
Inkarast accrued

Assets, total

Liahilitles:

Transection accounts of the Bank's Supeénvisory Board

members and management
Other refaled privats individials

Trada payablas:

- MF Software d.0.0., Banja Luka
- MKD Mikrofin duo.o,, Banja Luks
- Profi nava a.d., Bilelina

Other payablaa:

- Other payables

Interest payables::

- Mikrofin osiguranje a.d., Banje Luka
- Mikrafin MKD d.o.o., Banja Luka

- OIF Mikrofln plug a.d., Banja Luka

- Cilizens' Asgociation Mikrpfin

- Relaled privale individuals

Balance of dapaaits placed by related partles:

- MKD Mikrofin d.o.e., Banja Luka

- DUIF Mikrofin Invast e.d., Banja Luka
- QIF Mikrofin plus a.d. Ban[a Luka

- MF Sofiware d.o.o., Banja Luka

- Mikrofin oslguranje a.d., Banja Luka
- Cilizens' Associatlion Mlkrofin

- Profi nova ad., Bijeljina

- Other

Liabilities, total

Liabillties, net

MF BANKA A.D. BANJA LUKA

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012

4492 52

KY | ar

BS 44

2 “

G660 123

438 260

1,743 520

2479 780

7 8

13 7

1 -

5 7

26 22

104 118

3 7

2 1

4 3

&1 12

174 128

4,667 5,026

11 1

684 2486

76 oh

4,228 4,319

a90 1,046

49 46

a 4

10,614 10,783
12,893 11,734
{12,413} {11,811)
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2.

25.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS {Continued}
Year Ended Dacemhber 31,

2013 2012
Incoma
Intaresl income from relaled legal entities:
- MKG Mikrofin d.o.0., Banja Luka il

Fee and commisgion ncame from releted fegal enlilles:
- MKE Mikrofin d.o.c., Banja Luka 308 238

- Mikrofin sslguran]e a.4., Banja Luka 6 7
- MF SOFTWARE d.o.0., Banja Luka 1 1
- OIF Mikrofin plis a.d. Banja Luka 1 -
- Dryex d.o.0. Banja Luka 4 -
Interael income from the mermbers of the Bank's Supervisory Board

and management 2 3
Intergel income from othar related paries 24 -
Incoms, tetal 363 249
Expanses
Rental costs — MKD Mikrofin d.o.o., Banja Luka {287) (243)
Rental costs — Diveks d.o.o., Laktagi {16} {16)
Rantal costs — Mikrefin osiguranje a.¢.,Banja Luka (1) -
Software lerss -~ MF SOFTWARE d.o.0., Banfa Luke (82} {61)
Licenses - MF SOFTWARE d.0.0., Banja Luka fa5) (13}
Insurance sxpenses — Mikrofin osiguranje &.¢., Banja Luka {80} {42}
Interesl expenses — telated paries:
- MKD Mikrofin d.o.0., Banja Luka {3} {7
- Mikrofin oeiguranjs a.d., Banja Luka (183 {1668)
- QIF Mikrofin plus {(12) (4
- Citizens' Aszoclation Mikrofin {39 {39
- Profi nova a.d., Blllina () {2
- Bank's managament {15} )
- Other ralated parties {56) {19}
Rsmunerslions te the membars of lhe Supervisory Board and

Bank's management (17 {208}
Cther related parties {123 {63
Expenses, total {930) {825)
Expenzses, not [B37] {578]

TAXATION RIBKS

The Republic of Srpska and Bosnla and Herzegovina currenlly have several tax laws in effact, as
imposed by varlaus governmenlal agencies. The applicabla taxes Include: a turnover tax, corparata tex,
and payroll {social} taxes, among cthers. Following thelr introduction, the ragulallons governing these
taxes wers not enforced for substantlal perads of time; in contrast to similar leglstalion in more
dovelopsd market econonmies, Moreover, the regulations defining the Implementalion of thesea laws are
often unclear or non-sx/stent. Hence, few precedents with regard to lax issuss have been eslablished in
the Republic of Srpeka. Often, contrary oplnlons partaining to tege! interpretations axist boih among, and
within, governmental minisiiez and organizatlons, thusly creating unceraintias and areas of legal
contendion. Tax returns, together with other legel compliance malters (e.g., customs and currency
control matters) are subect to the reéview and investigation by a number of authoritles thal are legally
enabled to Impose extremely severs fines, penallles and interast charges.
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248,

26,

27,

TAXATION RISKS (Continued)

The interpretation of lax fegisiation by tax aulhotilies ag applied lo the transactions and activity of the
Bank may ol coingide wilh that of the menagemenl. A5 a resull, trensactions may be challenged by lax
autharities and the Bank may be assessed additional taxes, penaliies and interest, which ¢an be
significant. In accerdance with the Law on Tax Authority of the Republic of Srpska, explration periad of
the 1ax liabilly is five ysars. Thia praclicaily means that tax authorties could determing payment of
culsianding ligbllities in the period of five years from the origination of the liability. The afore-described
silualion creates tax risks in the Republic of Srpzka and Besnia and Harzegovina thet are substantially
more significant than thase typically axisling in countrigs with more developad tax systems.

In August 2013, the Tax Administration aof ths Republlc of Srpska conducled ingpection of the Bank's
calculation and paymant of dirgct laxes for the parod fram August 2008 to sugusl 203, The InEpection
ravealed no Iregularities In the Bank's calculation and paymsnt of direct lexes over the pericd under
revlew.

CURRENT ECONOMIC SITUATION AND iTS IMPACT ON THE BANK

During 2013, the Bank's operations were undar the impact of the global economic and financial crigls.
However, In the course of 2013, the Bank dig nol face any significant liguid!ty problems despite Lhe
gigrifizant lending activily. :
8o far, the ongoing financial oisie has had a limited impact on the financial posilion and performance of
the Bank, mainly due to the Interna! risk management poficies and reguiatory resiriclions. In @ timely
manmer ihe Bank took B number of measures to prevent rigk deterioration such ag:

. Reviglon of loan approvai policies and procedures, cradit rlsk gssessmant and risk
managsmeant policies and grocaduras;

. Creation of a new division within the Bank |n charga of oan restrucluring, :

- - Approval of lean rescheduling In ordar to adjust repayment to Ihe- actual and realistic
customerg' Bources of financing;

. Revaluation of collalerals upon loam reapproval and restructuringfrescheduling: and- o

- Ensuring the siructure of sources of assets thal enables restrucluring of the exigting exposures
te the customers. ’

Tha Bank closely monitars the credit, liquiclity, inlerest rate and foreign exchangs rlsks on an ongoing
basls. The management expects that the Bank's liguldity will be satistactory In the farthcoming perlod as
well,

The deteriorating econowic situaticn In the country will probably impact the posilion of cerlein Induglries
and the shility of ceriain cuslomers 0 dischargs their liabilities per borrowings oblained from the Bank.
This may congequently influence ihe ameunt of the Bank's provigiens for impalrmant logges in 2014 and
other areas that requirs esiimales to be made by management, including the valuation of collaterals and
of securifles. The 2013 finencial stalemants conlaln sigrificant estimates with respect to impalrment
charges and asset and coliateral valuation. The key priorily of the Benk In 2044 will be altantion to the
management of the financial porifolia adjusting to’lhe changing economic gnvironment,

EYENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIQD

Asof March 11 and 12, 2014, the Bank excculed an agreament on gssignmentfassurnption of a partion
of raceivables for a consideration, whereby [he Bank purchaged 2,827 loan accounts from the related
paty MKD Mikrofin d.oo., Banja Luka, . which ransferred all rights. and lishilities ariging from Ihe
ajirgsait to the Bank. The sales price of the portfolio sold was equal to the amount of ned receivables ae
at the Iransacian date, measured in accordance with the reguirements of 143 39 — "Financial
Iratesments: recognition and Measurement”

The tolal value of the aforedescrlbed transaclion of a loan portfallo portion purchase by he bank was as
falows:

Loans to Interest
Customers __ Accrued Total
fecaivables 10,354 26 10,441
less: Allowance for impaimment of receivables (2123 1B (2143
' 10,142 85 10,227
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8.1,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cantinued)
FInarglal Rlsk Managemant {Confinued)
The Managing Board (Contintied)

The Manzping Board iz also responsible for implemenlation of the defined risk management stralegy
and capital managemsnt strategy a6 well as (he Bank's risk management policles,

The Managing Board oversess the work of all lower management levels within the Bank end controls
lhe implemenlation of the adopled pelicles and procedures. The Managing Board maoniters the trends
and anaiyzes risk management 2t least quarterly and regularly informs tha supervisory Board thereof. In
instances certain activities are nol defined by the sirategy or policy, the Bank’s managing Board iz
ahligaled to nolify the supervisory Baard theraof.,

The Cradit Commifles

Withir the defined crediting policy of the Bank, the Benk's Credlt Commitles makes declsions on loans
from BAM 150 thousand to BAM 500 thousand of exposure to a single entity and loans tolaling betwesn
BAM 200 thousand to BAM 750 thousand of tolal exposure to 2 single entity or a greup of related
entilies. Cecisions on loans below the aforesaid amounts falls under remit of Credit Committess of
branches or Heads of Branches.

The Risk Management Departmont

The Rlsk Management Drepariment plays key role in [dentlfication, measurement, assessmenl and
mansgement of risks assumed by the Bank [n the regular course of buslness. The Risk Management
Departmend is under obligalion to axpress opinions in wiiting on all loan requests in excess of BAM 150
thougand. An opinfon of the Risk Management Cepadment I3 an Inlegral part of the foan proposal, ie.
loan case o ba discussad by the Cradit Commilias,

As a mermber of the Bank's Credit Commiltea, the Manager of the Risk Managameant Departmenl can
exercise ila veto pawer upon deciding on loans discussed by the Bank's Cradit Committea. The Risk
Management Bepartmant sxpresses an opinlon on each new rsk-gencraling credit product as well as
other risk-generating areas.

The Aszsed and Liabfily Management Commiltes (ALCQ)

The princlpal function of the Bank's Asset and Liabllity Management Committes {ALCO) is fo identify,
maasure, and manage risks inherent in the Bank's balance and off-balance shee! items, primarlly
liquidily and interest rata risks by setling adequata risk limits and measures for sliminallon of adverse

tak impact an profitakility.
Laan Maragamant Cormmifioe

The principal roles of lhe Loan Management Commitfee include monthly manitoring of the loan portfolio
guality at the branch level, consldering Indiidual lgan fles wilh exposures of over BAM 150 thousand
(mestly COR and PUB customers) and prepaning proposas, conclusfans and declslons. The
competenca of this Committee encompessas granting approvals of dopartureg from the defined

callzction pracadures,
Ligeidity Commission

The Bank's Liguidity Commission , comprised of thres members appointed by tha Bank's Supervisory
Board — a member of the Managing Beard, the Manager of the Traasury and Tranzactions Departmant
and Manager of the Risk Managsment Depstiment, has mestings at leasl on a monthly basls, The
Commission menifers and asessses daily liguidily based on the liguldity plan a3 of the cortaln dale,
submitled by the Treesury and Transactions Depariment on a daily basis to the members of the
Commlsslon and Managing Board.

The Commission analyzes the liquidity plan and its realizalion on a monlhly basis, proposes measures
and deflnes tasks for |lquidity malntenence sq thal the Bank ¢an avoid the risk of adverse effects on Iis
financlal performancs due to ils Inability ke dischargs [t current labilities as Ihese fall dua.
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9.
29.1.

29.2.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Continued)

Flnancial Risk Management {Continuad)
The Treasury and Transactions Daparfment

The Bark's Treasury and Transactions Cepariment manages current liquidity through the following
ectivitias,

- Planning cash inflows and outfows on a daily basis;

- Monltoring fransactions and cash balancas on the accounts of reserves held with the Central
Bank, balances on the accounts held with domestic and foreign correspondent banks and
balances of cash an hand in forelgn and local currgnclea (Bank's vault) and cash offfces of the
Bank;

- Obteining the shortfall amounls of funds or investing surplus liquid funds in the financia!
rmarkets; :

- Monitoring large Individual inftowsfoutfliows of funds of depositors and loan disbursemenla in
arder o maintain the forelgn currency position, malurily match and Umely setllement of 2l
liabilities matured:

- Anelyzing the structure and maturitiss of depesits, undentaking re-conlracting of malurilies for
deposits matured;

- Maintainlng and allocating the obligetary tegel reserve s the minlmum amount of funds sel
esfde of the account hald with the Cenlral Bank,

- Preparing daily, monthly and semi-annually liquidity pfans aa the melhod for eslimating fulure
liquidity;

- Repotling on liquidily mevements bath internally and axternally.

The most significant rigks to which the Bank is exposed are credit ek, markst risk, liquidily risk and
operatlonal risk.

Cradit Risk

The Bank assumes cradit risk which relates {o pofenfial negalive effects on the financial result of the
Rank contingent on the failure of deblors o meet thelr Nabilities towards the Bank. Credit risk (s the most
significant risk for the Bank's businsss operations, and the Bank manages Its risk exposura baing awars
of its Impartance. The credii risk exposure occurs primarily based on cradiling activities i.e. in loan
origination activity, Credit risk 1 alse present in off-balance sheel instrumants such as guarantess and
undrawn loan facllites,

Credlt risk ra_r:lrésants tha risk of negative effecls on the Bank's lnanclal result and capita! a5 & resull of
the custorner's Inatility to setlle s malured liabililies to the Bank. Credit risk enlails:

»  Dafault risk - the rigk of loss that may arise if 8 dehtor fails to settle [labilities toward the Bank;

+ Downgrade risk - the risk of [ass that may arlse If & risk level of a debtor is downgraded
{deterioralion of in the customer credit rating) on the line ilems of assats Ihat are recorded in
tha credit portfolio;

+ Risk of change in the value of essels - the risk of logs That may arise on iteme of asseis that are
recarded In the gredit partfolla [n the event of a decling in their market valua comparad to the
prica at which assets were acquired;

s Counlerparly exposure risks - risks that can arise from 1he Bank's exposure towaerd a single
individual, a group of relaled partles or ta entilles thet are related wilh the Bank.

The Bank manages credit risk by implemanting the crediling strategy focused on endrepreneurs and
SME and risk disperslon.

The Bank manages credit rigk by approving slandardized credit products in accordance wilh its crediling
policy. Those products and thalr basic characierslics In terma of amounl, maturity, Interest rats, fes and
cbligetory collateral are deflned 0 the bank's Credit Produc Catalogues. The Risk Management
Department is involved in definilion of credit products and their evaluation from the aspect of risk.
Decigion-making favela defined by the Rules of Procedure for Credit Committees, are compelent for
decision meking in Instances of standard loan approval under $tandard barms, whereas any deparlure
from the defined standards requires higher level decision making.
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29.2,

FINANCIAL INETRUMENTS [Continued)
CredIf Risk {(Continuad)

The Bank's Credit Manus! clearly defines the manner of proceseing credit praducts, documentation
required for ceraln markst ssgments, sleps of the crediting proceszs and organizational units an
Indivisual operators responsible for the implemantation thereof. The aforasaid document prescibes all
the forms vsed In loan processing and monlboring and the manner and forms for analyses of the credit
worthinezs of borrowers depending on the segment they beleng 1o {COR and PUB, SME and Retail
sagments}. The bank approves loans in acgordance with the deflned pracedure for [can approval based
on the asgessed credit worthiness of the borowers and collaterats. The analysie of the borrower
craditworthiness musl be presented in the document named “Analysls," which ingludes the Ioan
propoasl as the bBasie for making a declalon on loan approval, Such dacisions are made based on the
defined limits for individual expogures and total exposures per single entity or & group of related entitiss.
There fiva levels of autherity within the Bank for Ipan approval, the highest of which (s the Bank's
Supervisary Board and the lowest personal ragponsibility of the Branch Manager. Processing of loan
raguesle for BME and Refall segments is decentralized and perfermed by |he Bank's branches.
Procesaing of loan raquests from the reezlpt of up 12 the loan dizbursement Is performed through the
applicallon module edjusted to the requiremeants of the Fronl Offices.

In Aprll 2013, COR and PUB diviston was farmed whare processing of loan requests of corporate and
public sector cusiomers is centralized and loans are monitored and collected. This Division also
supparts documentary operations for SME.

Tha Instructions far Collection and Management of Mon-Performing Loans {MPL) dafine the manner of
monltoring tha exlsling leans and compelences and responsibliiies for performing collection actlvitles,
The aforesaid Inetructions define the dally and monthly monitaring of collaclion within cartaln steps of
NPL management are performed. In order to ensure quality, systematic and ordarly management of
[can portfolla In default, the Bank's inlemal procedures preseribe the following two documents: *Irregular
Repayment File" and "Collection Slrategies.” The “lrrepular Repayment File' represents a report
providing a summary of activiliss already undsrtaken and performad in respect of foans with repaymenl
ovar 30 days past due and is maintained until the loan repayment Iz gettted In full, Loan Offlcers are
obligated to mealnlaln the: [rregular repayment files and chronclogically racord all activities underlaken in
order to collect tha receivables. The maintenance of this form ia suppored by the software within the
module used by the Front Offlce. “"Collection Stralegles” |s a report presenting a dynamic overview of
acthvities that will be undartaken in order to collect receivables, i.e. the agreed vpon colleclion strategy.

Since the end of 2{M0, the Bank has had the Rizk Managamant Department within ils arganizalion. This
Deparment maasures and controls risks and since Nowvembser 2011, it has pedormed risk assessment
and svaluation of the borrower craditworthiness and glven apinfons presented 1o the Cradit Committes
upeon declding on loan appnoval,

In changes fo its organizalional strucfure conductad in 2011, the Bank relleved the Loan Officars of fean
accounting, loan dishuraement and other loan administration tasks and formed a separate deparment
for thess jobs, thereby reducing ths risk.

impairment Losses and Provisfoning Poficy

The Bank estimates the risk of polenlial logses due fo dederoration of the borrower cradit rating. Gredit
risk represents the rlsk of he borrowers” inabllily to discharge their liabilifes when due, whether there he
[Itlla probability of borrowers eettling the liabilities from their primary squrges ar the repayment be over
90 days pasl due.

Impealred loans are those loans whers objsctive avidence of impairment has been determined. Objsctive
evidence of impairment includes events causing meesureble decreasse In the estimated fulure cash

flows.

frdividually impaired assals are those assets which were assessed for Impalrment on an individual level
and for which fhe assessed impalrment losses have been recognizad. The amount of impeinment loss is
determined as the difference betwean the canylng value and the present value of the fulure cash flows.
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29.2.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [Contlnued)
Credit Risk {Continued)
fmpaimant Losses and Provisioning Palioy {Confinued)

The calculatad amount of the impairment of balance shest aseets is charged to expenses and credited
to the impairment allowance of those assets, while the calculated amount of the probable logs per off-
balance sheet assets is charged to sxpenses and cradited to lhe provisions for potenlial losses per off-
balance sheet ilems.

Groug-taval or portfolio-level assessment for impairment ks performed for loans that are nat individually
sfoniflcant. For the purpose of This type of Impairment assassment, loans are classified into arovps
homegenous from the credit risk aspscl In accordance with lhe bank's inlemal melhodology for
calculation of lhe Impeirment allowance.

Expected fufure cash flows for homogenous loan groups are determined based on the available
historical dala, mostly data on defaull in lizbilily setllement, and cash flows that will cerlainly resull from
collateral foreclosure are also taken inle account.

Coflaterals

in accordanca with the standard principtas of craditing operafions, the Bank requires collatarals for loan
securitization to cover the risk of the borrawer Inabllily to meel the cantraciual ebligations. The Bank
mas commonly uses the folfowing collaterale:

- Bills of exchangs,

- Collection authorizations,

- Statement of distralint {njunction),

- co-deblor,

- co-auretles,

- moartgages essligned aver property,

- pledge liens assigned over mavables,
- depozitsfsavings deposils,

- insuranca palicies.

The Bank reserves the right to dermand any other type of collateral it daems necessary.

Nan-Performing Loans (WFL)

Mon-performing loans {NPL) are loans wilh rapayment over 90 days past dus and materially significant
default, According 1o the categorization, those are category €, D and E loang. Loans from eategory B
and less than 90 days past due ate nof considered to ke NPL but are assets for special walch,

The Bank does nod have an intarnal customar credlt rating system. The Bank classifies the cusfomers in
accordance with its intermal melhodolagy for calculating Impairment allowance sccording bo the number
of days |n amears and in accordance wilh the BARS Decislon on the Minlmum Standards for Credit Risk
Management and Asset Classification. Pursuant to the aforacited BARS Drecision, all borrowers are
classiflied into 5 categorigs: AB.C.Dand E.

MPL management for SME and Retall cuslomers is cenfralized within the Divislon for Leoan
Rastructuring. The Divislon was formed in April 2013 In order to ensure higher qualily NPL managsment
for SME and Retail egment bomowers,

MPL managsment far COR and PUB customers Is also centralized and under remit of the COR and
PUB Dhision. This Dlvislon |8 competent for reschaduling and restructining COR and PUB loans but the
opinlon expressed by the Risk management Dapartment |¢ mandatory. YWhen lhlz Divislen hes
attempted and falled at all possibilities of collection, It proposss making a decision on instigation of legsl
proceedings to the Bank's Lean Manegament Commiltee/Credit Commiitee,
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTE {Continued)
Cradit Risk {Cantlnuad)
Non-Performing Loans (NPLYConlinued)

Instruclions for Collection and managemant of NPL expliclly prescribes the aclivities of assumption,
monitoring and collection of NPL for all market segments. A SME and Retail segment loan is assumed
by the Division for Loan Restructuring when either of the following two condllions is met:

- The borrower's total liabllHies natures per loan excsed or are eguzl 1o 4 repayment installments or
there was no repayment for the pravious two months and the lotel debt amount ie lower than the
arnount of 3 repayment [ngtallmenls; or

- The borrawer failed to selils the |labilities due per approved account averdraftfrevelving loan wilhin
30 days frem tha malurily of the lean partlan usad,

The borrawers maeting one or the other of the abovs listed criterls are {ransferred under the remit of the
Division for Loan Restrugludng if it is possitle to enable furlher regular debt sarvicing by the borrower
throtigh loan reschedulingfreslructuring. Borrowers are transferrad from the Front Office to the Loan
Restructuring Divislon upon Front Office creating a monthly Hst of borrowsrs where, on Lhe Yast day of
the previous month, condltions were met for this transfer, The transfer of bormowers fram the Front Office
to the Loan Restructuring Division fs mede at the group of related enlilies level. In axcaptlonsl cases,
the Division for Loan Restructuring may agsume only a cerlain membar of a group, which must be
explainet In detall, documented end spproved by the Bank's competent body. If there ara no
possibilifies for resuming debt servicing on the part of the borrower, such a borrowar is not ransferred to
the Loan Restrucluring Dvision but to the Legal Department Instead, where legal proceadings ara
instigated.,

After the transfer to the Loan Reslructuring Diviglen, the Loan Restrusturing Officer hecomes compstent
for a specific bomower/case uniil the final collection thereof or ils transfer to the Legal Depariment. The
Loan Restrucluring Officer is obligated to propese lo the Cradit Committes  the loan
reslructuringfrascheduling plan as soon a3 possible.

Restructurad loan ig & loan that has been refinanced, rascheduled or clherylse converted, .e. a loan
where, dus to the borrower's deteriorated situatfon and abilily to repey lean or inabllily ta repay it under
the initially defined terms, the previsusly contraclually defined terms ere subsaquendly changed fo
facilltate the borrower’s detit senvicing.

Loan Restructurdng Officers propoge approval of measures and incsnlives for the borrower's recovery
such a3 extension of repeymeni parcds for the exsting debls, rescheduling repayment liakllilles,
approving new loans to the maln bomowers or olher creditworthy co-debtors, decraase of the debl
amounts Through write-off of receivables, approval of additional grace periads, approval of different ways
of repayment to suil the borrowsrs' abllty to repay loans {(belloon payment, unequal repayment
instaliments ) elc.

Loan Officers or Loan Reslructuring Officers may at any Uims, upon estimating that &l possibilities of
MPL collsction have bean attempts and failled, propose instigation of legaf proceedings ageinst the
borrowers. Decision on Insligatien of legal proceedings against the borrewers are made by the
competent Credit Commitlee and such cases are transferred under the remii of the Legal Deparmeant
after the respactive Ivan agreamenits are terminated.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Continued)
Credit Risk {Continued)
Non-Pardorming Loans (NPLYCantinuead)

Loan Restrucluring Cficers are obligated to request Lhe fransfar 1o the lege! Department upan fIRlment
of the following crileria:

- the borrowars lotal debt matured equals or sxceeds the amaount of 7 loan repayment

instaliments; and
- lhe sum of the borrowers payments received in e previous 3 monthe s lower than a

single rapayment installmant amount.

The Front Offics Loan Cfflcers may also propose rescheduling lcans as a strategy {addressing
collection issues) even before criteria are mat for the loan transfer to the Loan Restrucluring Division.
This paiticularly ralales to the reslrusturing of retsil loans fulfilling the criteria frgm the BARS Declsion on
Tamporary Measures for Rescheduling Loans of Retall and Corporate Burrowers. These are not NPL
loans heing rescheduled, but loans up to 90 days past dus.

The Bank has sat up a centralized and automatad system for delivary of reminders to berrowers, which
is in charge of administrative clerks for the first and second reminder, while delivery of the reminder
before lawsuit filing, |.. befora loan agreement lerminalion, is within the scope of competence of Loan
Officers or Lean Restructuring Officars. After the transfer to the Legel Departmen, thls depariment
gssumes compelence over manltaing of the transfarmed lbansMarcowers untll full collection or write-off

of debt,

©n a weekly basis the Sank’s Managing Board reviews the loan portfollo aver 30 days pasl due per
segment, pariculady SME segment, and Undertekes activities to maintain ihe porlon of tha loan
porfolic over 30 days past due within the projecied scale.

Crodit Risk-Ralated Risks

The Bank issuss guaraniees lo [ts customers whereupon It has conlingent liabililies to make Lhe
paymenl In faver of third parlies. In this manner the Bank is exposed to risks gimifar end relaled to credit
risk, which may be overcome by applying the sams contrel processes and procedauras. Meonilering and
collectlon procedures appliad to these expasures are identical ko those applied ko Igans,

Collaterals and Other Forms of Securlizalion

The Bank demand security inslruments for 21l lypes of loans. The amount and typs of the security
instrurnent demanded depends on the market ssgmant a apeclfls borrower belongs to and the type of
credlt product approves as well a3 the assessed credit risk for each individual barrewer.

The assessmeni and falr value of collateral are based on the value thereof upon loan approval. In
accordance wilh its business policy and Intefnal procedures, the Bank determines the required fair valua
of the collateral ag well as the manner and time of [{s revalualion.

The managsment marilors the market valug of collsterals and demands additlonal securlfy instruments
upan reassessment of the impalrment allowance adequacy,

Year Ended December 31,

2043 2012
Loans securnitized with sarmarked deposits 1,243 2672
Loane secusitized with maortgages 44,312 18,678
Loans securitized with other ¢ollalerals 88,660 64,252
Total: 112,215 85,608
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28.

9.2,
29.2.1.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTE (Contlnuad)

Credlt Rlak [Continued)
Coneeniration Risk

In order fo improve credit risk management and control, the Bank has sst up adequale and prudent
llmits relatlve to the Bank's capllal in accordance wilh the BARS Declalon on the Minimum Standards for
Concentration Risk Management, as follows: total credit risk exposure of the Bank toward a singls entily
ar & group of related entittes must not excaed 40% of the Bank's core capital, this belng (he amount of
the largest total credil risk sxposure (LTCRE), The Bank may atlain the LTCRE foward a single enlily or
a group of ralated entities only if the following structure and restrictions thereck are engured:

v The Bank's credit rigk exposure toward a single entify or a group of related entities unsecured by
collateral must nol exceed 5% of the Bank's core caplial;

» The Bank's credit dsk exposure loward a singls entity or a group of related entifzs ranging from over
5% up to 25% of the Bank’s cors capltal must be secured by collateral;

» The Bank's credit risk exposure loward a zlagls enlity ar a group of relstsd entilizs ranging from over
25% up 1o LTCRE must be secured by the quality marketable pledge lisn the value of which, as
dstermined by reliable and stable marksl prices, excaeds the smounl of the exposure;

+ The Bank's tofal credit risk sxposure per contingenl off-balance sheal flabililles eward a single entlty
ot a group of related entilies except for perfermance bonds, must not excesd 20% of the Bank's core
capital.

The sum of the Bank's large exposures {Bank's large exposure = each total credit risk exposure toward
a singls entily or a group of related enlllies [n excess of 15% of the Bank’s core capilal) musi not be

above 200% of the Benk's cora capital.

The sum of the Bank's large exposures per conlingent off-balance sheet |labllilies loward a singla entity
or a group of related entilles except for performance bonds, must not exceed 300% of lhe Bank's core
capilal.

The Bank's internal policles and procedures define the congendralion limits per gingle enlily or a group of
relgted entiliss and Bank's relatsd partles.

The Risk Management Deparment manitors and measures and, in collaburation with the Accounting,
Cantrolling and Business Support Depariment, raports on the rlsks of exposure toward a single enlily or
a group of rglated entlttes and Bank's related pertles.

As of December 31, 2013, the Bank was In full compliance with all the limits regarding risk concentration
prescrived by BARS and agreed with creditors,

Risk Cancentration par Borrowsr

As of Decembar 31, 2013, the largesl sxposura to a single entity borrowsr, before considering
collsterals, amounted to BAM 3,469 thousand or 2.1% of the fotal credit risk exposure and 17.32% of
the Bank's core capltal (December 31, 2012 BAM 4,465 thousand).

Ae of December 31, 2013, the largest exposure e a grotp of related entities was the expesure 10
Agroimpex Group, which, before considering collaterals, amounted to BAM 3,155 thousand. Al the same
lime, the total cradit risk sxposure o the Bank's rélated parfies amounted fo BAM 2,504 thougand,

Cradit Risk Longentratlon per Geographic Areas

During 2013, the Bank's loan porfolio was concentrated on the tenitory ef the Republic of Srpska, i.e.
the City of Banja Luks, In Ine amount of BAM 38 milion, wilh significant growth In territoriel
coneenlration recorded in 1he towns of Derventa, East and Prifedor. In 2012 Lhe credil risk was also
concenlrated an the territory of the Republlc of Srpska, i.e. the Clly of Banja Luka,
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29.2.  Credit Risk {Continmuad)

20.2.1.  Conceniralfon Risk (Contirtred)

Credit Risk Concentration par Industry Sector

MF BANKA A.D. BANJA LUKA

The Bank has diversifiad pontfolle which encompasses varfous [ndusirles:

Decembar 31, Dacambar 31,
2013 In % 2012 It %

Construction induglry 4,732 6% 3,553 4%
Trade 21,339 8% 19,462 23%
Services, touriem, catering and

eccommadalion industry 1,801 2% 1674 2%
Agricullure 5,747 5% 4388 5%
Mining and induslry 11,874 11% 0.7 11%
Transpert, storage, poslal services

and telacommunlcalions ¥.387 T 5.331 8%
Finance senvices ., 727 3% 4,726 6%
Resl estats trade 744 1% 491 1%%
Administration, other publl¢ services 1,581 1% 2026 3%
Cther (refall customers) 51,303 46% 34,040 4%

Total 112,215 1008% 85,608 00%

Az of December 31, 2012 as compared to December 31, 2012, credit risk concentration decreased by
4% in the frade sector and increased by 6% in the retail sector, which Indudes private Individuals and

entreprenaurs, while the olher industries mosly retained the 2ama levels of concenlralion.

Credit Risk Concantration per Loan Type

The Bank regularly monltors and diversifies placed loans according to their purpose.

Decembar 31, Decamber 3,
M3 In % 2012 In %

Loans per transacliion accounts B 242 7% 5,293 5%
Consumer loans 32 531 29% 24,337 28%
Working capltal loans 14,205 13% 15.980 18%
Investment loans 44,240 40% 34,830 $1%
Housing loans 5,418 5% 1,288 2%
Olher loans-purchased short-term

Invastments-factoring 8,480 8% 3113 455

Total 112,215 100% 85 608 100%

As of December 31, 2013 as compared to December 31, 2012, credit risk cancenlration decreased by
6% in working capital loans and incraased by 3% in housing loens, while the other loans types moslly

retainad the same levels of concenlration,
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28, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
28.2.  Credit Risk {Continued)
2§.2.1. Concentration Risk {Continued)
Loan and Off-Batance Shest ltem Quallty According to BARS Categories {Portfollo Quality)
Pursuant to tha BARS Decision, the Bank claselfies loans 1o customers eccording to the number of days
they are In default {days past dus).
Category
Decembar 31, 2013 A ] < D E Total
Loans to customers
- ghort-term 15,367 4,768 158 1 1 20,290
- leng-lerm 71313 13187 2422 a3z &1 §7,295
- maturad 538 1,135 347 1,248 1,253 4,521
- guaranless called on - - 108 - - 108
Total lesns 87,218 19,068 3,083 1,681 1,315 112,215
- off-batance shest items 8,767 217 2 - - 2,976
Total Hebys 18285 30485 1,581 1,318 122,19
29.2.2. Slress Test
In the course of credit risk assessment, the Bank applied the worst possible scenario of gvenls for its
porlfolic. The Bank performed the slress test under the following assumplions: 20% BAM devalualion,
40% collaleral devaluation, and Increase in allowance for impaimment for customers with recorded
defavils [n setliing their matured liabilitias.
Total  Dlscounted Allgwanca Amount of
Portfollo as at Total Exposura Ket Collateral for Shorifall Total
Decambear 3, 2012 Exposura of Daposits Valua Impalrment Razarves Datarloration
Befare the fgst 123,306 121,837 114,484 3,285 3,533 8,768
Afler the test 160,615 144,145 21,220 4,083 3,667 7.730
Diffarenca 27 309 27,308 (33,264) 798 134 932
26.3.  Market Rlsk

The Bank essumes market risks which represant the risk that the fair valug or fulure cash flows from
financial instruments may oscillate due to changes in markel values. Market risks occur [ open
pesitions exposad to rlsk based on matuiilies, Interest rates, cumencies and capltal products exposed o
general and speclal movenents and changes related to the degree of market rats and price volatility
{sich as interesi rates, credit marging, furelgn exchange rates and prces of capital}.

The marke! risk control system I Implemenied through he separation of the risk assuming function
{Front Office) from the risk moniforing and management function and backup activilies {Back Office).
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28.
29.3.
28.3.1.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMEHNTS {Continued)
Market Risk {Continued)
Foreign Exchange Risk

Forelgn exchange Hsk rapresents the Bank’s exposure 1o the possible adverse sffects of (he changes in
exchange rates causing the Bank to incur losses In local currency, where the lsvel of forsign exchange
risk represents the funclion of the amount and duration of the Banics exposure to the possible changes
in exchangs rates and depsnds en the amount of Benk's foraign dekt, extent of the forslan currency
exposure of the batance shesl assets and off-halance shest ilems as well 23 ihe maiching of the
currancy cash flows of the Bank.

The strategy of the Bank, applied in forslgn exchange rigk managemen, is bassd on the maintenance of
foreign currency balancs within the imlls prescribad by the Law on Banks of the Rapublic of Srpska and
Declgion on he Minimum Slandards for Currency Risk Management in Banks.

For the purposs of controlling and fdentifying forelgn currency exposure, the Bank monitors daily
balanpes and struclure of foraign cumency ¢ash In the treasury, forsign currgncy assels and slructurs
per curenciss on the accounts wilh forelgn banks, ensures the matching betwean the forsign currency
position denominated in unstable currencles, includes In conlracts currency clause for bolh balance
shest assels and llabllilies and off-balance shest ilems, In the form a symmelsical, f.e. two-directional
currency clausa, in order 16 protect tha value of essets and liabilites Irrespective of the rise or decline of
the exchange rate of lhe currancy the currancy clauze refers lo against the local currency, so as to
achieve currancy match batween lhe financial assets and financial liabilities.

The Treasury and Trensactions Deparlment monitors the forelgn currency posltion on a deily basis and,
in golleboralion with the Front Cffice and Bank's Managing Board underlakes adequate afuresald
activilies In order to maintain the foreign currency posillon within the permiltzd lImits. In planning
activilies that significantly influenes the changss in the structure or melurifiss of the Bank's financial
assets endfor financial liabilitles, and thersby Bank's forsign currency positlon, the Treastry and
Transactions Departmenl makes projeclions of the forelgn currency posilion In order to ensure timely
activities for confinuous malntenance of the cumency match of ingnclal assets and financial [labllilies.

The bragkdown of foreign currency balances as of Decamber 31, 2043, net I3 presented in the table
below:

EUR Ush CHF GBP Othear Total
Financlal Assets In the Stafoment
of financlal position
Cesh and balancas with depositary
instifutfons 6.345 522 11 3 Tt 5952
Cthar financial azsals 214 - - - - 214
Currency clausa indexed loans 80,352 - - - - §9,352
94811 522 11 3 1 05,518
Financlal Habllit'es In the
Staternant of financial pealtlon
Deposits and matured but
oulstanding off-balange sheet
llatilities 19,168 32 8 - 1 18,209
Borrowings 34,0808 - - - - 34,089
Subordinated dabt 3oz - - - - 3,812
CHher financial liabililiss 559 3 - - 11 573
Currency clause Indexed liabililies 38,530 - - - - 38,530
o7 268 35 § - 12 87,313
Assetsfoff halance gheet
labllitfes
LONG POSITION - 487 3 3 5a -
Expressedin® - 2 - - - -
SHORT PGRITION 2347 - - - - 1.795
Exprassed In % 12 - . - - g
Allowed overnight position J0% 20% 20% 20% 20% 30%
Below the llmit In % 18% 18% 20% 20% 20% 21%
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29,
9.3,
2051,

22.3.2.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuad)
Market Risk (Continued)
Foreign Exchange Risk [Canlinuad)

Dusing 2013, he bank malntained the open Individual forslgn curensy position within limits parmitted for
EUR cuirency up to the maximum of +/- 30% of its core capltal and for USD currency up to 3% of ils
core capital, while the total forslgn currency poslion was within the permilted range, But up to the
maximum of +/- 27% of the Bank's core capital.

Forefgn Currancy Sensiffvily Analysls

The Bank is mostly exposed to EUR, Sihee Canvertible Mark (AAMN) is pegged to EUR, the Bank ig not
expased 10 rigk of fiuclualions in the EUR sxchanga rate.

Intaresf Rale Risk

The Bank is axposed to multiple risks, which influence its financial position and cash flows thraugh the
affects of changss In the amount of interest rate fluctuations on the market. Inleresl rate risk is the rigk
from adverse effect on the Bank's finansial result and aquily cenlingent on the changas In intersst rates.

The baslc ohjeclive of Interest rate risk managamant is to minlmlze adverze effects of changes in
interest rales.

Flxad interest rates ware applisd to the loans with rapayment perlods of up to 38 monlhs, and variable to
the loans with repayment periods of over 38 months. The exceptions are loans approved to corperale
cusfomers and publle gectar customers &5 well as housing loans where |he variable interast rates are
applied for all repayment periods. The Bank decide on the varlable Inlersat rate equal to S-month
EURIBOR rounded to the next decade above adjusted two times a year, on June 30 and December 31,

Fixed interest rates are applied to depesils, and interest rates on forelgn borcowings sre varlable and
based on 8-month ELRIBOR,

The basic principle of inlerest rele management is matching assets and liabilities per Interest rata type
{flxed ar varlable) and maturitles or reprlcing dates.

The Bank's top manegemenl and Risk hManagement Department take care of oplimizalion of Lhe levels
of profitability and inlerast rate risk exposure.

interest Rate Sansilivity Analvais

The sensitiviiy analyses below have beeh detormined besed on the exposure to Interest rates for
ingtruments et lhe stefemen! of financial position date, For floating rate liabilities, the analysis ig
prepared assuming the amount of Habllily oufstanding at the statement of financlal posilon date
remalned the same for the whole year. A 10% increasa or decreasa is vsed when reporting intersst rale
rigk Internafly 1o key mansgement personng! and represenis managements assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Had intzrest rates been 10% highertower and all clher varfables were held constant, the Bank's profit
for the year ended Ctecembar 31, 2013 would have decreasedfingreased by BAM 420 thousand {2012
profit decreasedfincreased by BAM 200 thousand).
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29, FINANGIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
29,3, Market Risk [Contfinued}
20.3.2 Infaresl Rafe Risk {Continuad)

The tabls below shows fhe review of the annual interest rates applied to most significant financle!

inslruments:
Farelgn
CUurrency BAM

Aaacts
Ubligatory reserve with the Central Bank - 0.004%-0.128%
Agaels In excess of obligatory reserves . 0.05% — 0.165%
Fareign currency accounts with foreign kanks .00 - 0.01% -
Short-term loans to customers:
- corporaba customers - 3.00%-18%
- retail customers - 6.50% -22%
Long-term zens fo customers:
- corporata customers - 3.32% - 18%
- retall cusiomers - 4 6% — 18%
Llaklllflaa
Demend deposits of corporate customers 0.10% ,10%-2 52%
Damand deposits of retall customers 0.00%-3% 0.10%-3 .00%
Short-term depogits:
- corporate custamers - 1.25%-5.07%
- ratafl cuslomers 2.20%-4% 1.75%-4%
Long-tarm depos/ta:
« Governmenl institwlions 4,20%-530%
- corporate custamears 5.5% 0%-4,90%
- retail customers 4, 30%-8.60% 4 30%-5.80%
Borrowlngs:

EFSE 5.087%-5.083%

K 4.875%-7.00%

EERD 5.0%%

RS Davelopment and Employment Fund - 1.20%-2.300%

RS Housing Fund - 1.80%-2.40%

Fund for Development of Eastern Regien of RS - 1.60%-2.40%

The Bank is exposed fo various rigks which, through the affects of changes in tha amounts of markel
interest rates, influencs its finencial position and cash flowa. Tha table below shows the review of
Interest-bearing and non-interasl hearing assets and labitities as of Decembar 31, 20113:
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29,
28.3.

29.3.2,

9.4,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Market Rlsk {Confinuad)

interest Rate Risk (Conthued)
Dacember 31, 2013

Man-Interest

Monatary assets Interest-Bearing Bearing Total
Cash and cash ggulvalents 32,102 7,706 39,598
Receivables ariging from interest, fea and

commlasion, trade and other receivables - 1,600 1,000
Loans and deposits to cuslomers 109,076 - 108,076
Equipment and intangible assets - 1,755 1,765
Total 141,178 10,551 161,728
Monatary llabliitles
Transgaction deposits 51,915 509 82424
Borrawings 42,580 - 42,590
Subordinated debt 3,812 - 3,912
Other liablliies - 2029 2.02p
Prrovigions for potenlial losees - 21 g
Total 128,417 2626 131,046

Ligquldity Risk

Liquidity rlsk is the risk which smerges when the Bank s unabls lo sstlle all llabllities when due and in
full. The besic objective of liquigity management 13 o ensure ihat the Bank has rescurcas obtelnable at
reasonable costs necessary ko discharge all liabilitles for expected and unexpected fluctuations In the
staternent of financlal position. Additionaliy, the process of liguldily managsment in the Bank nesds 10
ensure liquid resources suMiclent 1o finance the developmant of its lcan porifolio.

Tha strafegy of liguidity risk managemenl [n the Bank Is Implementad by establishing control over
maturlty matching between assels and sources of assets, based on reslisfic and accurate projections of
cash inflows and outllows, regular and extracrdinary, aver different time perlods,

Tha stralegy of asset liquidity dsk management encompasses:

s Biivings 1o keep within the ling ilems of assets, llguld forms of assels caslly exchanged on the
markel for cash at ne loss in case of a |louidity crisis (the Bank's aim is to maintaln sufficient
available resources to discharge its contingend llabllites at any time),

s  DOversification of inveslments per separate customers, per Industries and par loan maturities.

Tha strategy of llability management [n respact to liguldily gompriees the following:

*  Sirvings to ensure deposit stability with Increasing paricipalion ef long-term deposits,

¢  Meximum diversification of resovrces accerding to thelr maturily, stabllily, orlgin, market and
instrments,
Particular altsntlon ls paid to large deposits,
Undertaking arrangemehis with domestic and foreign banks on mutuel extansion of Interbank

liquidity loans which makes it possible to invest liquldily surpluses al an adeguata Inferesi rale, ia.
in case of insuflicient lguidily funds, thege resources ars avallable to Lhe Bank at favorable terms.

Primary sources of funts are local deposils acquired by the Bank by applying adequets inlerest rate
pollcy.

The adoption, comprehensivensss and implementation of the Liguldily Risk Managament Program is the
responslbility of Bank's Supervisery Board snd ils managament.
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29, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [Contlnuad)
28.4.  Liguldity Rlak [Continuad)
Everyday monitaring of dally llquldity in the Bank is tha responsibllily of the Treastry and Transaclions
Depatment and Liguidily Commission; shorkterm lquidily is the responsibilily of the Liquidily
Commiselon; and long-term liquidity is the responsibility of the ALCO (the Asset and Llabillly
tenagement Commiltes).
Responsible persons menilor the llquidity posiiion and composilien of asset and llabillty malurities and:
perfonm operational management of liquid assets on dally basis,
compare the posilions wilh prajecled posilion 3o as fo determing trends in the liguldily positions and
undsrtake adjustment measurss so the liguidity pozitlon and malurity gepe would be in compilance
with the law and the limiis a1 by the Bank's Supervisory Board.
Tha iable below shows a GAP analysis of essels and liabilliizs according to regpeclive malurily based
on the culstanding period before the agresd dus date by matching receivables and payables per
maturity periods in accardance with BARS regulations.
From From
As of Decembar 31, 2013 Within 1t0 3 Ito 12 Ovar 1
a Month Months Months Yeoar Total
ASSETS
Cash and balances with the
Central Bank 34,748 - - 34, 748
Deposlts with olher banks 5,150 - - - B.1G0
Loansa to customars 8,228 8,304 33220 58,213 108,076
Accrued Interest and other aszets 710 53 128 08 1,000
Tatal assets 48 847 8,357 33,348 50,422 149,874
LIABILITIES
Draposits 17 480 8,798 35,841 20,205 82,424
Borrowings 44 85 13,851 28600 42,580
Subordinated debt . - - 3912 3,212
Cthar abilities 483 A28 B24 805 2051
Total liabilities 18017 8,222 60,418 53,322 130,677
Liguldity gap a0 g0 {BB5) {17 068) 8,100 18,957
As of Dacember 31, 2012
Tolal aseats |78 6.8 24,740 43652 101,642
Telal labllilles 12417 5,112 30,721 24 492 82,742
Liquidily gap 14 302 {8,581} {5,881) 19,160 18,900
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29
294,

20.5,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Continued)

Liquldity Risk (Continusd)

1-30 1-80 1-180

Cecember 31, 2013 Days Days Days
Cash balances and depesils with depoaltory inslitutions 35 598 39,598 30,808
Loans, long-lerm receivables and lease recelvables 8,239 16,843 26,237
Othar financial assels Ti0 ik} 804
Total financial asasta 43 547 §7.204 67844
Deposlts and matured and outslanding oif-balanca

shee] ligbililias 17 480 26,278 42621
Borrewlings 44 139 4,008
Subordinatsd debt - - -
Other financial liabilithes 483 g22 1,029
Taotal financial labllitles 18,017 27,239 47 558
Difference Mnancle! aseats axceading llebifltles 30,830 25 2965 20,86
Difference fMinancia) iabllilles exceeding asseats - - -
Galculatlon of liability prezcribed In %
Assats f Liablfiea 271 210 142
Presct/bed minimum 85 a0 Fi
Excess of the pregerlbed minimum 188 130 o7

Cperatlonal Risk

Ciparationsal rlsk management is an important part of the Bank's husingess as i minimizes adverse effacts
on the income ang equity of the Bank. Operalional risk management antalls the following:

Forming a network of operallonal risk custodlans and reporters across departments and
divisions, wha ara In charge of taking activities in the area of opsrational risk menagement;
Malntalning records an harmful evenls gesurrences;

Cperalicnal risk identificallon and asssssment wilhin all processes and adoption of measunes
for risk minimization;

Ragular repor(ing on damages lncurred and datalled review of riske Identllied per process,
Monltoring of implementation of the proposed measures for the review of aperafional risks.

Operalional risk is managed based om

Monltering hanmiut evenls cccurrencs in the scope of operational risks;
Rlzk ldentlfication per process within the Bank;

Signiflcant risk measuremants;

Continucus manitoring and control of operational risks;

Forming the minimum amount of adequate capltal.

Moritaring harmful evenls occurrence in the scope of operational rigke resuts in the historical review of
the scale and type of actually occurred operalicnal risks and is parformed In accordance with the
Procedurs and Instrecliens for Harmful Event Recording.

Operational risk management Is parformed through the follawing activities:

*

ldentification of the existing sources of cperallonal risks and sources conlingent on the
infroduction of new producls, systems and aclivilies,

Cperatioral figk measurement through accurate and fimely risk eslimates;

Confinuous control of operational risks ansurng lhe maintenance thereof up to tha level
accaptable for the Bank's risk profile, lls reduction and minimlzation;

Conlinuous monitoring of operational rlaks by analyzing amounts, changes and trends of the
ank's exposure therela;

Forming the minimum amount of capltal fer proteclion against Ingureing operational rizk-basad
losses (MACOR],
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29.5.

28.6.

20.7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Cporational Risk (Continued)

v Clear dsfinltion of awthorty end responsibilily Unss in the process of operational rigk
gsaumption and managemsantl,

«  Ssiting up a system to ensure that all Bank's employaes become familtar with their respective
obligations in the process of cperational risk management;

«  Sgtting up a syslem for regular reporting to the Supervisory Board and Managing Board on
funclioning of the operational risk management,

» Cbligatory regular perledical review and ohligation of the Suparvisary Board to enalyze and
233233 adequacy of the established system for operational risk management at least annually.

Country Risk

The risk relateg to the counterparty country of origin means adverse effects on Lhe Bank’s financial
performance and capital dug ko the Banks nakility 1o collect receivables dus from such counterparly
resulting from political, economic and social circumstances in the counterparly country of origin.

The Bank manages country risk according to ils dsk managemenl slrategy and policy.

In assuming risk toward barks oulslde of Bosnia and Herzegovina, upen exposure limlf approval,
eountry risk assessment s also taken inte account,

Capital Managemant

Caplial represents a unigus economic resource and capits! management |3 one of tha moat important
compenenls of the Bank's prudend, efficlent and strateglc plenning and management.

The Bank manages its capital with & view to:
»  Ensure compliance with BARS requirements;
v Ensure adeguate amount of capital far gonlinuation of buglness operations; and
«  Mglntain its capital &t the level Lhat will enable future development.

The Bank's capital management policy includes providing and melntaining the quantily and quelily of the
capital al lsast at the level of the minimum standards preseribed by the BARS Decision on the Minlmum
Standards for Capilal Managemernt of Barks {the "Declslon’), ie., Ihe minlmum amourd of the share
capltal and the minimum amount of the nat caplla! that the Bank |s under obligation to malntain cannot
be below BAM 15 million. In accordance with the aforecited decision, the Bank's capital is comprised of
Iha core capilal (Tier 13, supplamentary capitat (Tier 2) and addillonal capital (Tier 3) and net capital |
the capilal less deduclibla [tems.

Tha Bank's care capllal 1s comprised of share capital pald In cash and other reserves thet do not refer to
the asset quality assessment lz32 lhe following deductible iterms: unsbsarbed prior years' logses and
intangible assels. The Bank's supplementary capilal Includes general reserves for absorption of credlt
lnazes per Bank's assels within catsgory A — good assets, amount of calculated current year proflt
audited and confirmed by an external audilor, and subordinated debts up te the maximum of &0% of the
core capital. The deductible item |3 the amount of shorifall reserves for credil lpeeEE per ragulatory
reqquirstment fwhich the Benk did not form}.

Tha Bank’s policies far maintaining tha guantity and qualily of the capita include the following:

v In respsect of the sharshalder cemposition and profile, the Bank is facused on sharenolders
from the banking sector and areas of micro crediing, financial investment, corporale
shareholders and aventually private individuals;

» Policy of diverse equily inslruments, particularly within fhe core and supplementary capifal, and
decrease or avoidance of the capital deductibles;

s In respect of the profit distribution, Increase in the Bank's lotal capital in accordance with the
gffactive regulations;

+ In respect of the capital adequacy, when the capilal adeguacy ratio fall below 15%, the Bank
undertakes aclivities to improve capitel adeguacy by new share issues, Increase of
supplementary capital by setiing as priorlties restructuring of bed assels, writa-off ¢f lakillles
and obialning subordinated debts,
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29,

28.7.

3.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {Continued)
Capltal Management {Continued}

Pracedures for continuous manitoring of the balances ars Implemented through:

s Maintaining up-lo-date accounting records;

»  Menltoring capital balances par quantity, quality and structure;

*  Monitoring and analyzing balance sheet ltams and off-balance sheet credil equivalents;

+ Raporting on changes In capltal and ¢hangas thal could have matersl adverae effect on the
capltal adaquacy;

«  Proposing necassary measures to be taken In arder 1o ensure the quantity and qualily strusture
of capilal; and

» Planning the capltal In terms of anticipaling the Bank's future needs and raquirsments for
capital.

The plan for capital adeguacy maintenances is harmonized with the plans for overall activities glven lhe
current ¢ondition and expected influences of the enlicipated changes in the business cparations and
environment. The Bank is under obllgalion to maintain capital adaquacy al the minfmum of 12% and the
management regularly monitors the adequecy indicators end eubmils a report thereon in the prescribed
form to BARS on & quarterly basis,

Az of December 31, 2013, the Bank wes in full compliance with all the prescribed capital adeguacy
indicators:

Yaar Endad Decamber 31,

2013 2012
ore capital 20,028 19,145
Supplementary capital 6,169 2068
Deductible lems 2448 2,388
Bank's nat capltal 22,749 18,848
Cradlt risk-waighted azsets and offbalance sheet ilems 115,332 86,3581
Weighled operafiona! risk exposure 8,551 4,828
Tolal risk-welghled assefs, off-balance sheet ltems and
operational risk exposure 121,883 B1,188
Caphtal adequacy ratic 18.70% 20, 7%

EXCHANGE RATES

Tha official exchange rates for major currenciss usad in the translation of stalernent of financial position
coemponenta denominated in foreign currencias into BAM as of December 31, 2013 and 2(12 were as

follows:

In BAM

Cecembear 31, Dacembar 31,

213 2012

usp 1.4190 1.4335
CHF 1.5954 1.6835
EUR 1.8558 1.8558
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